
 

Page 1 of 281 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 04, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of October 21, 2019. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on a proposed lease with the Black Hawk County Conservation Board relative to City-
owned property at 1501 East Lake Street. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published October 25, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

3. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a lease with the Black Hawk County Conservation 
Board relative to City-owned property at 1501 East Lake Street.  

4. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published October 25, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

5. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 

6. Public hearing on the proposed submission of the City's 2018-2019 Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant 
Program. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published October 16, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

7. Resolution approving the submission of the City's 2018-2019 Consolidated Annual Performance and 
Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant Program. 

1



 

Page 2 of 281 

Old Business 

8. Pass Ordinance #2957, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Ridgeway Avenue from 
Hudson Road east to Iowa Highway 58, upon its third & final consideration. 

9. Pass Ordinance #2958, granting a partial property tax exemption to Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C. for 
construction of an industrial use warehouse and production facility at 2900 Capital Way, upon its 
second consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

10. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of October 21, 2019 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Parking Update.  
b) Pavement Management. 
c) Bills & Payroll. 

11. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of September 2019. 

12. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
b) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an FY20 Cooperative Agreement with the Iowa 
Civil Rights Commission. 

14. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow and clear vegetation on 
the property located at 2208 Coventry Lane. 

15. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow and clear vegetation on 
the property located at 1804 Tremont Street. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Services Agreement with Cope Murphy + Co. 
LLP relative to legislative services. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing designation of a public electric vehicle charging parking space 
and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of an Electric Vehicle (EV) charger. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a 28E Agreement for Tobacco, Alternative 
Nicotine and Vapor Product Enforcement with the Iowa Alcoholic Beverages Division. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 12 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services 
relative to Slope Stabilization of Ridgewood and Mandalay Drives. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Encroachment Agreement with the North 
Cedar Neighborhood Association relative to placement of a neighborhood sign within the East Lone 
Tree Road public right-of-way. 

21. Resolution setting November 18, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a proposed amendment to 
the Zoning Agreement relative to conditions of the HWY-1 Highway Commercial Zoning District for 
property located in the southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue. 

2



 

Page 3 of 281 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

22. Allow Bills and Payroll of November 4, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 
business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, OCTOBER 21, 2019 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Green. Absent: 
Wieland. 

 
52526 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of October 7, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
The Mayor then read a proclamation declaring October 24, 2019 as World Polio 
Day and Cedar Valley Rotary Club President Eashaan Vajpeyi commented and 
invited everyone to ‘Dine Out’ on October 23rd at several local restaurants that 
have pledged to help raise funds for this effort. 

 
The Mayor then read a proclamation declaring October 20-26, 2019 as Friends of 
Libraries Week. Library Director Stern commented about Library programs 
offered throughout the year that are funded by this organization. 

 
 The Mayor then recognized his daughter Annie’s birthday. 
 

Public Safety Services Director Olson provided introductions of new Public 
Safety Officer Tryston Adelmund and Part-Time Firefighter Krystal Tucker 
(unable to attend), and Mayor Brown proceeded with the Administration of Oath 
to new Public Safety Officer Tryston Adelmund. 

 
52527 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of October 11, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption to Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C. for 
construction of an industrial use warehouse and production facility at 2900 
Capital Way. It was then moved by Miller and seconded by Blanford that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
52528 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed exemption. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham commented briefly. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed exemption, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52529 -    It was moved by Green and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2958, 

granting a partial property tax exemption to Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C. for 
construction of an industrial use warehouse and production facility at 2900 

4

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Capital Way, be passed upon its first consideration. Following due consideration 
by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52530 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2955, 

amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located in the vicinity of 1700-2000 Union Road from the A-1, Agricultural District, 
and placing the same in the R-1, Residence District, be passed upon its third and 
final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Green. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2955 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52531 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2956, 

amending Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to monument mailboxes, be passed upon its third and final consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Green. Nay: deBuhr. Motion carries 5-1. 
The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2956 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52532 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2957, amending 

Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Ridgeway Avenue from Hudson 
Road east to Iowa Highway 58, be passed upon its second consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52533 - It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Darrah that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
      Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of October 7, 2019 relative 

to the following items:  
      a) Census Update.  
      b) Creekside Technology Center Master Plan.  
      c) Bills & Payroll. 
 

Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of Community Main Street relative to FY20 
Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds and an FY20 
Economic Development Grant. 
 
Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of College Hill Partnership relative to FY20 
Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds and an FY20 
Economic Development Grant. 

 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  

5

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

a) Aldi Inc., 6322 University Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.  
b) Pablo's Mexican Grill, 310 Main Street, Class B beer - renewal.  
c) Fareway Store, 4500 South Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal.  
d) Fleet Farm, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - new. 
e) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - new. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52534 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,739, of support for Community Main Street, Inc., and approving 
and authorizing execution of a Main Street Iowa Program Agreement with 
Community Main Street Inc. and the Iowa Economic Development Authority for 
the purpose of continuing the Main Street Program in Cedar Falls. 
 
Resolution #21,740, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
the Use of State or Local Overtime and Authorized Expense/Strategic Initiative 
Program for Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Forces (OCDETF) for 
FY2020. 
 
Resolution #21,741, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. relative to the Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Project-Viking 
Road to Greenhill Road. 
 
Resolution #21,742, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with James V. Sands relative to a post-
construction stormwater management plan for Lot 6 of Prairie Springs U.M.C. 
Minor Plat. 
 
Resolution #21,743, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 10 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services relative to the West Viking Road 
Reconstruction Project-Production Drive to South Union Road. 
 
Resolution #21,744, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 11 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services relative to Floodwall/Levee 
System Record Drawing Services. 
 
Resolution #21,745, approving and accepting completion of public improvements 
in Wild Horse Ridge Fourth Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,746, approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District 
site plan for façade improvements at 116 West 4th Street. 
 
Resolution #21,747, approving and authorizing execution of an Addendum to 
Developmental Procedures Agreement with Greenhill Estates, Inc. relative to 

6

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

public improvements in the vicinity of the Greenhill Road and Coneflower 
Parkway intersection. 
 
Resolution #21,748, approving the final plat of Wild Horse Ridge Fourth Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,749, approving the preliminary plat of The Pointe at Henry Farms. 
 
Resolution #21,750, approving the final plat of The Pointe at Henry Farms. 
 
Resolution #21,751, approving and accepting a Storm Water Easement 
Agreement, and approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Vereit Real Estate L.P., relative to a 
post-construction stormwater management plan for 400 West Ridgeway Avenue. 
 
Resolution #21,752, approving the Creekside Technology Center Master Plan. 
 
Resolution #21,753, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for 
Economic Development Website Services with Brand Acceleration, Inc. 
 
Resolution #21,754, approving and authorizing execution of six Agreements for 
Professional Services relative to use of Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds, in conjunction with the FY19-20 Annual Action Plan. 
 
Resolution #21,755, setting November 4, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a 
proposed lease with the Black Hawk County Conservation Board relative to City-
owned property at 1501 East Lake Street. 
 
Resolution #21,756, receiving and filing, and setting November 4, 2019 as the 
date of public hearing on, the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & 
estimate of cost for the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,739 through #21,756 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
52535 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that the bills and payroll of 

October 21, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Green. 
Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52536 - Public Safety Services Director Olson provided an update and clarified 

emergency response information regarding a recent accident on Greenhill Road.  
 
 The Mayor then recognized Boy Scouts in attendance at the meeting. 
 

7

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

52537 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah to adjourn to Executive Session 
to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is 
imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the 
position of the governmental body in that litigation, following Public Forum. Upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52538 - Public Works Director Schrage responded to a question by Tracie Sulentic, 1008 

Rocklyn Street, regarding water runoff from nearby fields and basement flooding. 
  
 Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, provided a rebuttal regarding a response 

from her previous comments related to ex parte communications on City Council 
matters. 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson and Finance and Business Operations 

Director Rodenbeck responded to questions by Darren Yoder, 3919 Beaver 
Ridge Trail, regarding the Insurance Service Office (ISO) rating and the public 
safety budget. 

 
 Director Olson and Councilmember Kruse responded to comments by Thomas 

(TJ) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, regarding the organizational chart, law enforcement 
assistance and the process of hiring ahead. Olson also responded to 
Councilmember Miller’s request for clarification on 28E agreements with 
surrounding communities. 

 
 Director Olson responded to comments by Genny Van Dorn, 4124 Thresher 

Court Unit 304, regarding fire promotions, and questions by Councilmember 
Green regarding removal of fire helmet cameras. 

 
 Councilmember Kruse and Director Olson responded to concerns by Charles 

Johnson, 1003 State Street, regarding training requirements and salaries of 
public safety officers. 

 
 Director Olson responded to comments by Whitney Smith, 2904 Neola Street, 

regarding the number of fires in Cedar Falls and training/testing standards. 
 
 Director Olson responded to questions by Tracie Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, 

regarding staff coverage when there are multiple accidents at the same time. 
 
 Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck responded to questions 

by Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, and Councilmember Green relative to 
archived City Council meeting videos. 

 
 College Hill Partnership Executive Director Kathryn Sogard commented on 

recent landscaping, seating and improvements at Pettersen Plaza and Seerley 
Park. 

  
 Director Olson responded to comments by Sharon Regenold, 108 Lilliput Lane, 

8

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

regarding social media, public forum and equipment availability.  
  
 The Mayor and Director Olson responded to comments by Sarah Langel, 1312 

Windsor Drive, regarding the use of the Compressed Air Foam (CAF) system.  
 
 The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:42 P.M. 
 
 Mayor Brown reconvened the City Council meeting at 8:57 P.M. and stated that 

Legal Matters had been discussed but that no further action was required at this 
time. 

 
52539 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:58 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

ITEM 1.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

PUBLIC WORKS & PARKS DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor James P. Brown and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Chase Schrage, Director, Public Works Department 

 DATE: October 28, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Big Woods Campground – Ranger House Lease 

 
 In May 2010, the Big Woods Lake Campground was completed and opened for 
operation. The campground is owned by the City of Cedar Falls but operated by the 
Black Hawk County Conservation Board (BHCCB). The partnership exists due the 
expertise that the County has operating other campgrounds in the area. They provide 
consistent and appropriate control and are able to market this campground with others 
in the county. 
 In order to operate the campground efficiently, the BHCCB leased a house from 
the City in March 2010 at 1501 E. Lake Street, which is at the NW corner of the 
campground. The house is used to operate the campground and a park ranger lives at 
that location. The ranger provides assistance to campers in the area, monitors hunting 
in the deer management zone (to the south and west of the campground) and has law 
enforcement capabilities and assists the city with that aspect in the Big Woods Lake 
area. 
 The previous lease with BHCCB expires at the end of 2019. A new lease has 
been developed (see attached) by City Attorney Kevin Rogers to continue the 
partnership between the City and the County. This lease has been reviewed by the 
Black Hawk County Attorney and he recommends forwarding to the BHCCB for their 
review. I anticipate it will be reviewed by their board in November. 
 The Department of Public Works recommends that the City Council approve the 
new lease agreement with the BHCCB to continue to use the property at 1501 E. Lake 
Street for the purposes of operating the Big Woods Lake Campground. The new lease 
would expire December 31, 2029. Please let me know if you have any questions. 

10

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

 

LEASE - BUSINESS PROPERTY 

 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, is entered into on ____________ by City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

("Landlord") whose address for the purpose of this lease is 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 

50613, and Black Hawk County Conservation Board ("Tenant") whose address for the purpose 

of this lease is 1346 West Airline Highway, Waterloo, IA 50703. 

 

1. PREMISES AND TERM. The Landlord, in consideration of the agreements and 

conditions herein contained, leases to the Tenant and Tenant leases from Landlord, 

according to the terms of this lease, the following described "premises", situated in Black 

Hawk County, Iowa: 

 

That part of the property located at 1501 East Lake Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally 

described as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, consisting of a one-story frame 

residential dwelling with detached garage, and surrounding yard and driveway entrance. 

with the improvements thereon, and all rights, easements and appurtenances, for a term of 

10 years, commencing at midnight of the day previous to the first day of the lease term, 

which shall be on January 1, 2020 and ending at midnight on the last day of the lease 

term, which shall be on December 31, 2029, upon the condition that the Tenant performs 

as provided in this lease. 

2. RENTAL. Tenant agrees to pay to Landlord as rental for said term, as follows: $0.00 per 

month. 

 Tenant shall pay: All expenses associated with the premises as described in this 

Lease, including without limitation paragraphs 2, 6 and 7. 

2(1). "TRIPLE NET"PROVISION 
INITIAL IF APPLICABLE 

 

________ 

Landlord 

 

 

________ 

Tenant  

 

Tenant agrees that all duties and obligations to repair, maintain 

and provide utilities and services (paragraphs 6 and 7), to pay 

special assessments (paragraph 10) and to pay for casualty and 

liability insurance (paragraph 11) shall be borne solely by Tenant 

during the term of this lease. (If the parties select this provision, 

all duties and obligations set forth in paragraphs 6, 7, 10 and 11 

shall be performed by the Tenant). 

3. POSSESSION. Tenant shall be entitled to possession on the first day of the term of this 

lease, and shall yield possession to the Landlord at the end of the lease term, except as 

herein otherwise expressly provided.  

4. USE OF PREMISES. Tenant covenants and agrees during the term of this lease to use 

and to occupy the leased premises only for a ranger station for the ranger managing Big 

Woods Lake Campground. For restrictions on such use, see paragraphs 6 (c), 6 (d) and 11 

(b) below. 

11

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

5. QUIET ENJOYMENT. Landlord covenants that its estate in said premises is in fee 

simple and that the Tenant, if not in default, shall peaceably have, hold and enjoy the 

premises for the term of this lease. Landlord shall have the right to mortgage all of its 

right, title, interest in said premises at any time without notice, subject to this lease. 

6. EQUIPMENT, DECORATING, REPLACEMENT, REPAIR AND 

MAINTENANCE. 
DEFINITIONS 

"Maintain" means to clean and keep in good condition. 

"Repair" means to fix and restore to good condition after damage, deterioration or partial 

destruction. 

CONDITIONS OF PREMISES 

A. Tenant takes the premises in its present condition. 

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 

B. Landlord shall replace and repair the structural parts of the buildings. For purposes of 

this lease, the structural parts of the building shall mean the foundation, exterior 

walls, load bearing components of interior floors and walls, the roof and all sewers, 

pipes, wiring and electrical fixtures outside of the structure. 

C. Repair shall be performed and paid for by the parties as follows: 

 

 PERFORMANCE 

 

PAYMENT 

 

 L=LANDLORD 

T=TENANT 

 

 

% Landlord 

 

 

% Tenant 

 

Interior walls, floors and ceilings 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Sewer, plumbing fixtures, pipes, wiring, 

electrical fixtures within the structure 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Heating equipment 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Air conditioning 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Plate glass (replacement) 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Sidewalks 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Parking areas 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Other common areas (strike if inapplicable) 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

 

D. Landlord shall be responsible for maintenance of all common area under Landlord's 

control. Tenant shall be responsible for all other maintenance.  

12

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

E. Any repair or maintenance not specifically provided for above shall be performed and 

paid for by Tenant  

F. Each party shall perform their responsibilities of repair and maintenance to the end 

that the premises will be kept in a safe and serviceable condition. Neither party will 

permit nor allow the premises to be damaged or depreciated in value by any act, 

omission to act, or negligence of itself, its agents or employees. 

 

EQUIPMENT, DECORATING AND ALTERATIONS 

 

G. The following items of equipment, furnishings and fixtures shall be supplied and 

replaced by the parties as follows: 

 SUPPLIED 

L=Landlord 

T=Tenant 

 

REPLACED 

L=Landlord 

T=Tenant 

 

Heating equipment 

 

T 

 

T 

 

Air conditioning equipment 

 

T 

 

T 

 

Carpeting/floor covering 

 

T 

 

T 

 

Drapes, shades, blinds 

 

T 

 

T 

 

 

Any similar equipment, furnishings, and fixtures not specifically provided for 

above shall be provided and paid for by Tenant. 

Any equipment, furnishings or fixtures to be supplied by Tenant shall be subject 

to the Landlord's prior written approval as to quality and method of installation. Tenant 

shall provide all trade equipment, furnishings and fixtures used in connection with the 

operation of its business, such as telephones, computers, desks, chairs, shelving and 

similar items. 

H. Tenant shall make no structural alterations or improvements without the prior written 

consent of the Landlord. 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

I. Tenant will make no unlawful use of said premises and agrees to comply with all 

valid regulations of the Board of Health, City Ordinances or applicable municipality, 

the laws of the State of Iowa and the Federal government, but this provision shall not 

be construed as creating any duty by Tenant to members of the general public, 

provided, however, responsibility for compliance with the Americans with 

Disabilities Act shall be performed and paid for by the parties as follows: 

 

 

 

 

13

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

 % Landlord 

 

% Tenant 

 

Common areas 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Tenants area: 

 

 Initial compliance (specify) 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

 Future compliance 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

7. UTILITIES AND SERVICES. Utilities and services shall be furnished and paid for by 

the parties as follows: 

 

 PERFORMANCE 

 

PAYMENT 

 

 L=Landlord 

T=Tenant 

 

 

% Landlord 

 

 

% Tenant 

 

Electricity 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Gas 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Water and Sewer 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Garbage/Trash 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Janitor/Cleaning 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

Common areas 

 

T 

 

0.00 

 

100.00 

 

    

8. TERMINATION, SURRENDER OF PREMISES AT END OF TERM -- 

REMOVAL OF FIXTURES. 
A. TERMINATION. This lease shall terminate upon expiration of the original term. 

B. SURRENDER. Tenant agrees that upon termination of this lease it will surrender 

and deliver the premises in good and clean condition, except the effects of 

ordinary wear and tear and depreciation arising from lapse of time, or damage 

without fault or liability of Tenant. 

C. HOLDING OVER. Continued possession by Tenant, beyond the expiration of its 

tenancy shall constitute a month to month extension of this lease. 

D. REMOVAL OF FIXTURES. Tenant may, at the expiration of its tenancy, if 

Tenant is not in default, remove any fixtures or equipment which Tenant has 

installed in the premises, providing Tenant repairs any and all damages caused by 

removal. 

14

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

9. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING. Any assignment of this lease or subletting of 

the premises or any part thereof, without the Landlord's prior written permission 

shall, at the option of the Landlord, constitute an event of default. See paragraph 16. 

10. TAXES. 

A. PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES. Tenant agrees to timely pay all taxes, 

assessments or other public charges levied or assessed by lawful authority against 

its personal property on the premises during the term of this lease. 

B. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. Special assessments that would be delinquent if not 

paid during the term of this lease shall be timely paid by the parties in the 

following proportions: 

 Landlord 0.00% 

 

Tenant 100.00% 

 

C. Each party reserves its right of protest of any assessment of taxes. 

11. INSURANCE. 
A. PROPERTY INSURANCE. Landlord and Tenant agree to insure their respective 

real and personal property for the full insurable value. Such insurance shall cover 

losses included in the special form causes of loss (formerly all risks coverage). To 

the extent permitted by their policies the Landlord and Tenant waive all rights of 

recovery against each other. 

B. LIABILITY INSURANCE. Tenant shall obtain commercial general liability 

insurance in the amounts of $1,000,000.00 each occurrence and $2,000,000.00 

annual aggregate per location. Such policy shall include liability arising from 

premises operations, independent contractors, personal injury, products and 

completed operations and liability assumed under an insured contract. This policy 

shall be endorsed to include the Landlord as an additional insured and shall 

include a governmental immunities endorsement in a form approved by Landlord. 

C. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to the time the lease takes effect the 

Tenant will provide the Landlord with a certificate of insurance with these 

property and liability insurance requirements. Such certificate shall include 30 

days advance notice of cancellation to the Landlord. A renewal certificate shall be 

provided prior to expiration of the current policies. 

D. ACTS BY TENANT. Tenant will not do or omit doing of any act which would 

invalidate any insurance, or increase the insurance rates in force on the premises. 

E. INCREASED RISKS OR HAZARDS. Tenant further agrees to be liable for and 

to promptly pay, as if current rental, any increase in insurance rates on said 

premises and on the building of which said premises are a part, due to increased 

risks or hazards resulting from Tenant's use of the premises otherwise than as 

herein contemplated and agreed. 

F. Tenant shall provide a copy of this lease to its insurers. 

12. LIABILITY FOR DAMAGE. Each party shall be liable to the other for all damage to 

the property of the other negligently, recklessly or intentionally caused by that party (or 

their agents, employees or invitees), except to the extent the loss is insured and 

subrogation is waived under the owner's policy. 

15

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

13. INDEMNITY. Except as provided in paragraph 21 (A) (5) and except for the negligence 

of Landlord, Tenant will protect, defend and indemnify Landlord from and against all 

loss, costs, damage and expenses occasioned by, or arising out of, any accident or other 

occurrence, causing or inflicting injury or damage to any person or property, happening 

or done in, upon or about the premises , or due directly or indirectly to the tenancy, use or 

occupancy thereof, or any part thereof by Tenant or any person claiming through or under 

Tenant. 

14. FIRE AND CASUALTY. 

A. PARTIAL DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES. In the event of a partial destruction 

or damage of the premises, which is a business interference which prevents the 

conducting of a normal business operation and which damage is repairable within 

60 days after its occurrences, this lease shall not terminate. In the event of a 

partial destruction, Landlord shall repair such damages within 60 days of its 

occurrence unless prevented from doing so by acts of God, government 

regulations, or other causes beyond Landlord's reasonable control. 

B. ZONING. Should the zoning ordinance of the municipality in which this property 

is located make it impossible for Landlord to repair or rebuild so that Tenant is 

not able to conduct its business on these premises, then such partial destruction 

shall be treated as a total destruction as provided in the next paragraph. 

C. TOTAL DESTRUCTION OF BUSINESS USE. In the event of a destruction or 

damage of the leased premises including the parking area (if parking area is a 

part of this lease) so that Tenant is not able to conduct its business on the premises 

or the then current legal use for which the premises are being used and which 

damages cannot be repaired within 60 days this lease may be terminated at the 

option of either the Landlord or Tenant. Such termination in such event shall be 

effected by written notice of one party to the other, within 20 days after such 

destruction. Tenant shall surrender possession within 10 days after such notice 

issues and each party shall be released from all future obligations. In the event of 

such termination of this lease, Landlord at its option, may rebuild or not, at its 

discretion. 

15. CONDEMNATION.  
A. DISPOSITION OF AWARDS. Should the whole or any part of the premises be 

condemned or taken for any public or quasi-public purpose, each party shall be 

entitled to retain, as its own property, any award payable to it. Or in the event that 

a single entire award is made on account of the condemnation, each party will 

then be entitled to take such proportion of said award as may be fair and 

reasonable. 

B. DATE OF LEASE TERMINATION. If the whole of the demised premises shall 

be condemned or taken, the Landlord shall not be liable to the Tenant except and 

as its rights are preserved in paragraph 15 (a) above. 

16. DEFAULT, NOTICE OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 
EVENTS OF DEFAULT 

A. Each of the following shall constitute an event of default by Tenant: 

16

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

1) Failure to observe or perform any duties, obligations, agreements or 

conditions imposed on Tenant pursuant to terms of the lease. 

2) Abandonment of the premises, "Abandonment" means the Tenant has 

failed to engage in its usual and customary business activities on the 

premises for more than fifteen (15) consecutive business days. 

NOTICE OF DEFAULT 

B. Landlord shall give Tenant a written notice specifying the default and giving the 

Tenant ten (10) days in which to correct the default. If there is a default (other 

than for nonpayment of a monetary obligation of Tenant) that cannot be remedied 

in ten (10) days by diligent efforts of the Tenant, Tenant shall propose an 

additional period of time in which to remedy the default. Consent to additional 

time shall not be unreasonably withheld by the Landlord. Landlord shall not be 

required to give Tenant any more than three notices for the same default within 

any 365 day period. 

REMEDIES 

C. In the event Tenant has not remedied a default in a timely manner following a 

Notice of Default, Landlord may proceed with all available remedies at law or in 

equity, including but not limited to the following: 

1) Termination. Landlord may declare this lease to be terminated and shall 

give Tenant a written notice of such termination. In the event of 

termination of this lease, Landlord shall be entitled to prove claim for and 

obtain judgment against Tenant for all expenses of Landlord in regaining 

possession of the premises and the reletting thereof, including attorney's 

fees and court costs, crediting against such claim, however, any amount 

obtained by reason of such reletting. 

 

2) Forfeiture. If a default is not remedied in a timely manner, Landlord may 

then declare this lease to be forfeited and shall give the Tenant a written 

notice of such forfeiture, and may, at the time, give Tenant the notice to 

quit provided for in Chapter 648 of the Code of Iowa. 

17. RIGHT OF EITHER PARTY TO MAKE GOOD ANY DEFAULT OF THE 

OTHER. If default shall be made by either party in the performance of, or compliance 

with, any of the terms or conditions of this lease, and such default shall have continued 

for thirty (30) days after written notice thereof from one party to the other, the person 

aggrieved, in addition to all other remedies now or hereafter provided by law, may, but 

need not, perform such term or condition, or make good such default and any amount 

advanced shall be repaid forthwith on demand, together with interest at the rate of 5.00 % 

per annum, from date of advance. 

18. SIGNS.  
A. Tenant shall have the right and privilege of attaching, painting or exhibiting signs 

on the leased premises, provided only (1) that any sign shall comply with the 

ordinances of municipality in which the property is located and the laws of the 

State of Iowa; (2) such sign shall not change the structure of the building; (3) such 

sign, if and when removed, shall not damage the building; and (4) such sign shall 

17

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

be subject to the written approval of the Landlord, which approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 

B. Landlord during the last ninety (90) days of this lease, or extension, shall have the 

right to maintain in the windows or on the building or on the premises either or 

both a "For Rent" or "For Sale" sign and Tenant will permit, at such time, 

prospective tenants or buyers to enter and examine the premises. 

19. MECHANIC'S LIENS. Neither the Tenant nor anyone claiming by, through, or under 

the Tenant, shall have the right to file or place any mechanic's liens or other lien of any 

kind or character whatsoever, upon said premises or upon any building or improvement 

thereon, or upon the leasehold interest of the Tenant, and notice is hereby given that no 

contractor, sub-contractor, or anyone else who may furnish any material, service or labor 

for any building, improvements, alteration, repairs or any part thereof, shall at any time 

be or become entitled to any lien on the premises, and for the further security of the 

Landlord, the Tenant covenants and agrees to give actual notice thereof in advance, to 

any and all contractors and sub-contractors who may furnish or agree to furnish any such 

material, service or labor. 

20. LANDLORD'S LIEN AND SECURITY INTEREST. 
A. Said Landlord shall have, in addition to any lien given by law, a security interest 

as provided by the Uniform Commercial Code of Iowa, upon all personal property 

and all substitutions thereof, kept and used on said premises by Tenant. Landlord 

may proceed at law or in equity with any remedy provided by law or by this lease 

for termination of this lease because of Tenant's default in its performance. 

21. ENVIRONMENTAL. 
A. Landlord. To the best of Landlord's knowledge to date: 

1) Neither Landlord nor Landlord's former or present tenants are subject to 

any investigation concerning the premises by any governmental authority 

under any applicable federal, state, or local codes, rules and regulations 

pertaining to air and water quality, the handling, transportation, storage, 

treatment, usage, or disposal of toxic or hazardous substances, air 

emissions, other environmental matters, and all zoning and other land use 

matters. 

2) Any handling, transportation, storage, treatment, or use of toxic or 

hazardous substances that has occurred on the premises has been in 

compliance with all applicable federal, state and local codes, rules and 

regulations. 

3) No leak, spill release, discharge, emission or disposal of toxic or 

hazardous substances has occurred on the premises. 

4) The soil, groundwater, and soil vapor on or under the premises is free of 

toxic or hazardous substances. 

5) Landlord shall assume liability and shall indemnify and hold Tenant 

harmless against all liability or expense arising from any condition which 

existed, whether known or unknown, at the time of execution of the lease 

which condition is not a result of actions of the Tenant or which condition 

18

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

arises after date of execution but which is not a result of actions of the 

Tenant. 

B. Tenant. Tenant expressly represents and agrees: 

1) During the lease term, Tenant's use of the property will not include the use 

of any hazardous substance without Tenant first obtaining the written 

consent of Landlord. Tenant understands and agrees that Landlord's 

consent is at Landlord's sole option and complete discretion and that such 

consent may be withheld or may be granted with any conditions or 

requirements that Landlord deems appropriate. 

2) During the lease term, Tenant shall be fully liable for all costs and 

expenses related to the use, storage, removal and disposal of hazardous 

substances used or kept on the property by Tenant, and Tenant shall give 

immediate notice to Landlord of any violation or any potential violation of 

any environmental regulation, rule, statute or ordinance relating to the use, 

storage or disposal of any hazardous substance. 

3) Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, agrees to remediate, correct or remove 

from the premises any contamination of the property caused by any 

hazardous substances which have been used or permitted by Tenant on the 

premises during any term of this lease. Remediation, correction or removal 

shall be in a safe and reasonable manner, and in conformance with all 

applicable laws, rules and regulations. Tenant reserves all rights allowed 

by law to seek indemnity or contribution from any person, other than 

Landlord, who is or may be liable for any such cost and expense. 

4) Tenant agrees to indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from and against 

all claims, causes of action, damages, loss, costs, expense, penalties, fines, 

lawsuits, liabilities, attorney fees, engineering and consulting fees, arising 

out of or in any manner connected with hazardous substances, which are 

caused or created by Tenant on or after the date of this lease and during 

any term of this lease, including, but not limited to, injury or death to 

persons or damage to property, and including any diminution of the value 

of any leased premises which may result from the foregoing. This 

indemnity shall survive the cessation, termination, abandonment or 

expiration of this lease. 

22. SUBSTITUTION OF EQUIPMENT, MERCHANDISE. ETC. 
A. During its tenancy, the Tenant shall have the right to sell or otherwise dispose of 

any personal property of the Tenant situated on the premises, when in the 

judgment of the Tenant it shall have become obsolete, outworn or unnecessary in 

connection with the operation of the business on the premises; provided, however, 

that the Tenant shall, in such instance (unless no substituted article or item is 

necessary) at its own expense, substitute for such items a new or other item in 

substitution thereof, in like or greater value. 

B. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as denying to Tenant the right to 

dispose of inventoried merchandise in the ordinary course of the Tenant's trade or 

business. 

19

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

23. RIGHTS CUMULATIVE. The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies 

of either party, provided in this lease, shall be construed as cumulative and no one of 

them as exclusive of the others, or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed 

either party by law, and shall in no way affect or impair the right of either party to pursue 

any other equitable or legal remedy to which either party may be entitled as long as any 

default remains in any way unremedied, unsatisfied or undischarged. 

24. NOTICES AND DEMANDS. Notices as provided for in this lease shall be given to the 

respective parties hereto at the respective addresses designated on page one of this lease 

unless either party notifies the other, in writing, of a different address. Without prejudice 

to any other method of notifying a party in writing or making a demand or other 

communication, such message shall be considered given under the terms of this lease 

when sent, addressed as above designated, postage prepaid, by certified mail deposited in 

a United States mail box. 

25. PROVISIONS TO BIND AND BENEFIT SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, ETC. Each 

and every covenant and agreement herein contained shall extend to and be binding upon 

the respective successors, heirs, administrators, executors and assigns of the parties; 

except that if any part of this lease is held in joint tenancy, the successor in interest shall 

be the surviving joint tenant. 

26. CHANGES TO BE IN WRITING. None of the covenants, provisions, terms or 

conditions of this lease shall be modified, waived or abandoned, except by a written 

instrument duly signed by the parties. This lease contains the whole agreement of the 

parties. 

27. CONSTRUCTION. Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall 

be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine, feminine or neuter 

gender according to the context. 

28. CERTIFICATION. Tenant certifies that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on 

behalf of any person, group, entity or nation named by any Executive Order or the United 

States Treasury Department as a terrorist, “Specially Designated National and Blocked 

Person” or any other banned or blocked person, entity, nation or transaction pursuant to 

any law, order, rule or regulation that is enforced or administered by the Office of 

Foreign Assets Control; and it is not engaged in this transaction, directly or indirectly on 

behalf of, or instigating or facilitating this transaction, directly or indirectly on behalf of, 

any such person, group, entity or nation. Tenant hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and 

hold harmless Landlord from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, risks, 

liabilities and expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) arising from or related to any 

breach of the foregoing certification. 

29. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. A. NO ALTERATIONS. Tenant shall make no 

alterations or improvements to the Leased Premises without the prior written consent of 

the City of Cedar Falls Director of Community Development. 

B. TERMINATION OF LEASE. This Lease may be terminated by either Landlord or 

Tenant upon sixty (60) days' advance written notice to the other party. Upon the giving of 

such notice, this Lease shall terminate at the expiration of the sixty (60) day period. 

Tenant agrees to vacate the Leased Premises no later than the expiration of said sixty (60) 

day period. 

20

ITEM 2.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 164, Lease – Business Property 

Revised January 2016 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, LANDLORD 

 _________________________________ 

Black Hawk County Conservation Board, 

TENANT 

 

 

 

 

  

 

[ATTACH APPROPRIATE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS HERE] 

 

21

ITEM 2.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
501 E. 4th Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8633 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Water Reclamation Division 

  

  

 

 
 
  

 

 

 

 TO:  Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer  

           Engineering Department 

 DATE: October 30, 2019 

 SUBJECT: 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project Public Hearing 

  Project No. SA – 000 – 3214 

 

Public Hearing has been set for this project as Monday, November 4, 2019. The Plans, 

Specifications, Estimate of Cost, and Quantities are on file with the City Clerk’s office, 

and available to contractors. 

 

This project involves approximately 9,000 feet of sanitary sewer line rehabilitation. The 

total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $285,000. The majority of the 

project will be funded by the Community Development Block Grant program. Additional 

funding above the $250,000 grant provided will be from the sewer rental fund.     

 

Bid opening is set for Tuesday, November 12, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. Bids will be presented 

to be received and filed, with a recommendation of a contract, at a future council 

meeting. 

 

Thank you very much. Please let me know if you have any questions.     

22

ITEM 4.



ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed. 8/15/2019
K:\Projects\Citywide\Roads11x17.mxd

2019 Sewer lining & LMI Areas

23

ITEM 4.



24

ITEM 4.



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
    Page Number 
 
TITLE SHEET  1 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 - 3 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 5 - 7 
 
DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders 
 

01 Definition & Terms 8 
 02 Qualification of the Bidder 8 - 9   

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 9 
04 Taxes  9 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder & Bid Security 9 - 10 
Form of Proposal 11 - 12 
Bid Bond  13  
Bidder Status Form 14 - 15 

           Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 16 
Form of Contract 17 - 18 
 

 
DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

01 Award of Contract 19 
02 Availability of Site 19 
03 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 19 
04 Contract Time 20 
05 Weekly record of Working Days 20 
06 Progress Payments 20 
07 Pollution Prevention Plan 20 - 21 
08 Method of Measurement 22 
09 Basis of Payment 22 

2

25

ITEM 4.



3 

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications 
 

The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2019 edition of the Iowa “Statewide 
Urban Design and Specifications” (SUDAS) as the City’s Standard Specification. 
 
This “Standard Specification” is amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ 2018 
Supplemental Specifications to the 2019 edition of the Iowa “Statewide Urban 
Design and Specifications” (SUDAS). 

 
Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards   
 
DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS 23 - 25 
 

2019 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PLAN 
 
List of Locations  26 – 27 

 
DIVISION 5 – CDBG Funding          28 - 73 
 

Wage Determination (11 pages) 
Required Federal Contract Language for CDBG Funded Contracts (12 pages) 
Payroll Form (2 pages) 
On-site Interview Forms/Online Employee Questionnaire/Complaint Intake (10 pages) 
Section 3 (9 pages) 
Project Sign (1 page) 

26

ITEM 4.



4 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE 

2019 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 
IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER PERSONS 
INTERESTED: 
 

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimate of 

Cost for the construction of the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project in said City at 

7:00 p.m. on the 4th day of November, 2019, said meeting to be held in the Council 

Chambers in the City Hall in said City. 

Said Plans, Specifications, and Form of Contract are now on file in the office of the 

City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected by any persons 

interested. 

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications or Contract or the cost of 

making said improvement. 

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

                              

    City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 
    By: _______________________________ 
       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC 
            City Clerk

27

ITEM 4.



     
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

2019 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 
IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Sealed proposals will be received for 2019 Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project at the City Clerk's office by the Water Reclamation Manager or an authorized 
representative of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, until 2:00 p.m. on the 12th day of November, 2019. 
 
Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be opened and 
read at 2:00 p.m. on the 12th day of November, 2019 in the City Council Chambers at City Hall, 220 Clay 
Street Cedar Falls, Iowa, for consideration by the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
on the 18th day of November, 2019 or at such later time and place as may be fixed. The City of Cedar Falls 
reserves the right to reject any and all proposals including without limitation, nonconforming, nonresponsive, 
unbalanced, or conditional bids. 
  
Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall commence 
within eight (8) calendar weeks after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed 
regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. The project must be completed by February 28, 
2020.  
 
Bid Security: Each Form of Proposal shall be accompanied in a separate envelope by a proposal guaranty as 
defined in Division 1 Section 05.  
 
Contract Documents: Plans, specifications, and Form of Proposal blanks may be obtained from the Water 
Reclamation Manager’s Office, 501 East 4th Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. Contract documents are also available 
electronically by calling 319-268-5161 for ftp site location and access rights. 
 
Preference for Iowa Products and Labor: The Contractor shall give preference to Iowa domestic labor in the 
construction or building of such public improvement or works in accordance with Section 73 of the Code of 
Iowa. 
 
Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption Certification to 
purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the performance of this project. Products 
utilized in the construction of this project will be exempt from tax as provided by Iowa Code Sections 423.2 
and 423.45. 
 
Project Description: This work shall consist furnishing and installing a cured in place liner within existing 8 and 
24 inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in accordance with the contract documents. 
Total project involves approximately 10,043 linear feet and 157 service taps. A complete list of sewers to be 
rehabilitated and TV inspection reports for most lines are available.  Contractors may wish to perform their 
own evaluation prior to the bid. 
 
CDBG Funded: This project is being funded in part by Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) dollars 
originating from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  Therefore, this 
project is subject to federal labor standard requirements, including Davis Bacon-Act (federal prevailing wage 
requirements for laborers and mechanics on site) and HUD Section 3 Hiring (low-income persons 
employment) provisions.  Bidders should submit completed and signed “Intent to Comply with Section 3 
Requirements” form as part of their bid documentation.  The Intent to Comply form as well as details on other 
federal requirements, including prevailing wage rates, are included in the Specifications. 
 
 

5

28

ITEM 4.



Section 3 language for procurement documents: 
  

A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the 
Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The 
purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by 
HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, 
be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD 
assistance for housing. 
 

B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, which 
implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract 
certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying 
with the part 135 regulations. 
 

C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the 
contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the 
labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this section 3 
clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both 
employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall 
describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, 
availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and 
location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the 
work shall begin. 
 

D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to compliance with 
regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable 
provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in 
violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The contractor will not subcontract with any 
subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in 
violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. 
 

E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are 
filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other 
than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 135 require employment opportunities to be 
directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR part 135. 
 

F. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, termination of this 
contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts. 

 
G. With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing assistance, 

section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also 
applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest 
extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians, 
and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations 
and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of 
section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in 
derogation of compliance with section 7(b). 

Section 3 Businesses are encouraged to respond to this proposal.  A Section 3 business is a business that is: 

51% owned by Section 3 residents* 

Whose permanent, full-time staff is comprised of at least 30% Section 3 residents* 

6

29

ITEM 4.



Has committed 25% of the dollar amount of its subcontracts to Section 3 businesses 

*A Section 3 resident is defined as a public housing resident or someone with a household income that is less 
than 80% of the area median income. 
Businesses that believe they meet the Section 3 criteria are encouraged to register as a Section 3 Business 
through HUD’s website: https://portalapps.hud.gov/Sec3BusReg/BRegistry/RegisterBusiness 
 
Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
      BY: __________________________ 
            Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, 

                  City Clerk  
 

 

 

7

30

ITEM 4.



DIVISION I – Instruction to Bidders 
 

The work comprising the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project shall be constructed in 
accordance with the 2019 edition of the Iowa “SUDAS” and as further modified by the City of Cedar 
Falls’ 2018 Supplemental Specifications and the special provisions included in the contract 
documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the documents are defined in said Standard 
Specifications.  
 
Before submitting your bid, please review all requirements of DIVISION 5 related to CDBG funding of 
public improvement projects. 
 
Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General Provisions and 
Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, bonding, contract execution, 
and insurance requirements.  Please be certain that all documents have been completed properly; as 
failure to complete and sign all documents and to comply with the requirements listed below can 
cause your bid not to be read. 
 
01 Definition & Terms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03: 
 
Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa 
 
Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative. 
 
Project Manager: The Water Reclamation Manager of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized 
representative.  
 
Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council. 
 
Project: 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project; Project No. SA-000-3214 
 
02 Qualification of the Bidder 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01: 
 
To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners request, 
bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below: 
 
The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years engaged in the 
contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the state where incorporated; A 
list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to evaluate if the bidder can complete the 
work in accordance with the bidding documents; A financial statement of the bidder showing that 
the bidder has the financial resources to meet all obligations incidental to the work; The bidder’s 
performance record giving the description, location, and telephone number of similar projects 
constructed in a satisfactory manner by the bidder; A list of projects presently under contract, the 

8

31

ITEM 4.



approximate contract amount and the percent of completion of each; A list of contracts which 
resulted in lawsuits; A list of contracts defaulted; A statement of the bidder indicating whether or not 
the bidder has ever filed bankruptcy while performing work of a like nature or magnitude;  A list of 
officers of the firm who, while in the employ of the firm or the employ of previous firms, were 
associated with contracts which resulted in lawsuits, contracts defaulted or filed for bankruptcy; The 
technical experience of personnel guaranteed to be employed in responsible charge of the work 
stating whether the personnel have or have not performed satisfactorily on other contracts of like 
nature and magnitude or comparable difficulty at similar rate of progress; Such additional 
information as will assist the Owner in determining whether the bidder is adequately prepared to 
fulfill the contract. Owner’s decision as to qualifications of the bidder will be final. 
 
The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered 
into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full 
opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the 
grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02: 
 
Plans, specifications, and proposal forms may be obtained from the office of the Water 
Reclamation Manager’s Office, 501 East 4th Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. Plans, specifications, and 
proposal forms have been approved by the City Council and are now on file for public examination 
in the office of the City Clerk. Contract documents are also available electronically by calling 319-
268-5161 for ftp site location and access rights. 
 
04 Taxes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08: 
 
Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption Certification to 
purchase building materials, supplies or equipment in the performance of this project. Products 
utilized in the construction of this project will be exempt from tax as provided by Code of Iowa 
Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder & Bid Security 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12: 
 
The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including all add 
alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates).  Bid security shall be in the form of a 
cashier’s check, a certified check, or a bank money order drawn on a FDIC insured bank in Iowa 
or drawn on a FDIC insured bank chartered under the laws of the United States; or a certified 
share draft drawn on a credit union in Iowa or chartered under the laws of the United States; or a 
bid bond executed by a corporation authorized to contract as a surety in Iowa or satisfactory to the 
Jurisdiction.  The bid bond must be submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid 
bond forms are acceptable.  All signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; 

9

32

ITEM 4.



facsimile (fax) of any signature on the bid bond is not acceptable.  Bid security other than said bid 
bond shall be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”. 
 
“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by persons, 
firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable bid security. 
 
The bid shall be submitted on the Form of Proposal included herewith or on a computer printed 
proposal. All entries on this proposal shall be filled in ink, typed or computer printed. The bidder 
shall not alter the quantity, unit price, or the extension that has been provided for items that have 
been predetermined by the contracting authority. 
 
If the proposal is computer generated, the bidder shall submit a form titled as “Form of Proposal,” 
followed by: the project name, project number, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and the bidder's name. 
The form shall then include the item numbers, item descriptions, and units and their quantities. The 
bidder shall specify a unit price in figures of dollars and cents for all pay items, the extensions for 
the respective unit prices and quantities in figures in a column provided for the purpose, and the 
total amount of the proposal obtained by adding the amounts of the several items. The form shall 
then conclude with the bidder's name, that of its representative and the representative's signature. 
 
The computer generated proposal then is to be attached to the Form of Proposal included herewith, 
which has the following entries completed: bid security sum and form, the name of the bidder and 
its official address, and the bidder's representative's name, signature, and title. Also the total bid 
shall be completed with the entry of "see attached." 
 
The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope separate from the Bid Security, Bidder Status 
Form, and the Non-Collusion Affidavit. The envelope shall bear the return address of the Bidder 
and shall be addressed as follows: 
 

To: City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
Proposal for: 2019 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project  
  Project No. SA-000-3214 
   

 

10

33

ITEM 4.



FORM OF PROPOSAL 
2019 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
PROJECT NO. SA-000-3214 

 
To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that _________________________ have personally and carefully 

examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract annexed hereto.  Having 

made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to construct the improvements for the 

2019 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT in accordance with the plans and 

specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk, the published Notice to Bidders and the Form of 

Contract, herewith, complying with all the laws of the State of Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, and to the satisfaction of the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, including the guaranteeing of this Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of 

final acceptance thereof at the following prices, to-wit: 

Item 
No. 

Item 
Code Description 

Item 
Quantity 
and Units 

Unit Price Amount 

Dollars Cents Dollars Cents 

1 4050-
108-A-0 Pipe Lining, 8 Inch   7,861 

Linear Feet     

2 4050-
108-A-0 Pipe Lining, 12 Inch 1,826 

Linear Feet 
    

3 4050-
108-A-0 Pipe Lining, 18 Inch 356  

Linear Feet 
    

4 
4050-
108-B-0 
 

Building Sanitary Sewer Service 
Reconnection 

157 
Each 

    

5 4050-
108-B-0 Grouting Service Laterals 157 

Each 
    

6 11020-
108-A-0 Mobilization 1 LS     

   Total Bid   

 
 

11

34

ITEM 4.



Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items constitute 
one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. Bids shall be submitted for all of the items. The 
successful bidder will be determined by evaluating the Total Bid shown above. Failure to submit a 
bid on any item shall be just cause for disqualification of the entire proposal. Unit bids must be filled 
in ink, typed or computer generated, or the bid will be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to 
delete any part or all of any item. 
 
The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, nonconforming, 
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further reserves the right to reject the 
bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to be non-responsible. The 
Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the Owner believes that it would not be in the best 
interest of the project to make an award to that bidder. The Owner also reserves the right to waive 
all informalities not involving price time or changes in the work 
 
If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned within 
thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this bid is 
withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the prescribed form and 
furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the Contract is presented to him for 
signature, and start work within ten (10) calendar days after "Notice to Proceed" is issued. 
 
Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders. 
 
The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request. 
 
The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda: 
 
Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
 
The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal. 
 
Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 1001. 
Name of bidder 
________________________________  _____________________________ 

   By 
________________________________  _____________________________  
Official Address   Title  

 
 

 

12

35

ITEM 4.



BID BOND 
PROJECT NO. SA-000-3214 

 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, ___________________________________________ 
__________________________, as Principal, and ___________________________________________ 
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," In the 
penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) lawful money of the United 
States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, and 
successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted the accompanying bid 
dated the _______ day of_______________________, 20_____, for ______________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 
(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and shall 

furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor 
or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement created by 
the acceptance of said Bid, 

 
Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and 
agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this 
obligation as herein stated. 
 
By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of damages 
sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in the 
specifications or by law. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in 
no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or execute such 
contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as 
are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper 
officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Principal 

 
 
_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title) 
Witness 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Surety 

 
_______________________________________ By____________________________________ 
Witness                                  Attorney-in-fact 

                
 
 
 
 

13

36

ITEM 4.



 
 
 

14

37

ITEM 4.



 
 
 
 
 

15

38

ITEM 4.



    NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER           
 PROJECT NO. SA-000-3214 

 
 
STATE OF _______________________  

                           ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1)  We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________          
  (owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent) 
 
_____________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid: 
 
(2)  We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent 
circumstances respecting such bid: 
 
(3)   Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid: 
 
(4)  Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or 
parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the Contract 
for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such Contract, or has 
in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any 
other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other Bidder, or, to fix any 
overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through any collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or any 
person interested in the proposed Contract; and 
 
(5)   The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, 
owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant. 
 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 

Signed      
  __________________________________________ 

    Title 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 
this _______ day of ________________, 20_____ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________ 
Title 
 
My Commission expires ______________________. 

 
 

16

39

ITEM 4.



 
FORM OF CONTRACT 

 
This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of 

_________, 2019, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the 

Owner, and_____________ of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials, and equipment and 

construct the public improvement consisting of:  2019 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION 

PROJECT; PROJECT NO. SA-000-3214 all in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, ordered to be 

constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by Resolution duly passed on 

the 21st day of October, 2019 and shown and described in the Plans and Specifications 

therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said 2019 SANITARY SEWER 

REHABILITATION PROJECT attached hereto shall be made a part of this contract as fully as 

though set out herein verbatim: 

a. Resolution of Necessity 
b. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
c. Plans 
d. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
e. Notice to Bidders 
f. Instructions to Bidders 
g. Supplemental Conditions 
h. General Conditions 
i. Project Specifications 
j. Form of Proposal 
k. Performance Bond 
l. Maintenance Bond 
m. Form of Contract 

17

40

ITEM 4.



n. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 
o. Bidder Status Form 
 

On completion of the said improvement, the Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor the prices 

set out in the Form of Proposal of the Contractor, said payment to be made in the manner 

stated in the published Notice to Bidders. 

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first herein 

written.   

 
 __________________________ 
 Contractor 

 
 
    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
    By____________________________ 

   James P. Brown, Mayor City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC 
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18

41

ITEM 4.



DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

 
Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the “SUDAS” Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect. 
 
01 Award of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03: 
 
The lowest responsive bidder will be required to furnish a performance, payment, and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of two 
(2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
02 Availability of Site 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04: 
 
During construction of this project, the Contractor will be required to coordinate all work 
operations with the Department of Community development, City project contractors, and / or 
others involved with, but not limited to, the following events: 
 

1) Public Works garbage collection operations 
2) Street Restoration - 2019 
3) Street Reconstruction – 2019 
4) Cedar Falls Util. Co. electrical, communications, gas & water main projects 
5) 2019 Public Sidewalk & Patching Project 
6) College Hill Arts Festival – June 21 and 22, 2019 
7) Sturgis Falls Celebration – June 28 thru 30, 2019 

 
03 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01: 
 
The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than fifty (50%) 
percent of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. An item designated as a 
specialty item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item as 
performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the amount 
of work required by the Contractor's organization. 
 
 
 
 

19

42

ITEM 4.



04 Contract Time 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02: 
 
The work under the proposed contract shall commence within eight (8) calendar weeks after 
the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed regularly and 
diligently throughout the duration of the project. There is no specified number of allotted 
working days for this contract; however, much of this work is in conjunction with street 
reconstruction or resurfacing. To minimize conflicts, and avoid encountering a situation that 
may require a possible spot repair under a newly laid street, Contractor should plan to finish 
by February 28, 2020.  
 
05 Weekly Record of Working Days 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06: 
 
Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset.  
 
06 Progress Payments 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01: 
 
Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the first (1st) and third 
(3rd) Mondays of each month. 
 
Payment for the work may be made in three parts, if requested by the Contractor.  The 
Contractor may request from the Owner a progress payment when the job is 33% complete 
and another when the job is 66% complete. Final payment will be made upon satisfactory 
completion of this contract.  Payment will be in accordance with the prices set forth in the 
proposal for the quantity of work performed.  This shall include any additional expenses 
preapproved by the Owner. 
 
Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain ten (10) percent of the project cost from the 
last payment for a period of ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and 
approval, unless satisfied that material and laborers have been paid for in full. 
 
07 Pollution Prevention Plan 
 
1. Project Description 

20

43

ITEM 4.



 
This work shall consist furnishing and installing a cured in place liner within existing 8 and 
24 inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in accordance with the 
contract documents. Total project involves approximately 10,043 feet and 157 service 
taps. This project encompasses multiple locations within the city.   
 
2. Erosion and Sediment Controls 
 
All contractors and subcontractors operating on the site shall take efforts to prevent 
contamination of storm water runoff, groundwater, and soils by hazardous material and / or 
pollutants caused by their operations or encountered in their work. All waste materials and 
supplies must be removed from the site(s). If construction equipment maintenance or repair is 
performed on any site, provisions must be made to capture and remove any lubricants or 
other fluids. 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Owner immediately upon finding a hazardous material 
contamination either existing at the site or caused by construction activities. 
 
The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall be responsible to the Owner to: 
 

1. Execute Contractor’s part of the pollution prevention plan as described. 
 

2. Conduct all work activities to not damage an existing erosion control measure or 
stabilizing vegetation.  If damages occur, the Contractor shall make repairs with 
no additional cost to the Owner. 
 

 3. Coordinate with the Owner for installation of additional erosion control 
measures that may be needed during construction. 

 
3. Certification Statement  
 

N.P.D.E.S. CERTIFICATION 
 
The contractor certifies under penalty of law that they understand the terms and conditions of 
the general National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit that authorizes 
the storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from the construction site as part 
of this certification. Further, by signing and entering into contract for this work, the contractor 
understands that they are becoming a co-permittee, along with the owner(s) and other 
contractors and subcontractors, to the Iowa Department of Natural Resources NPDES 
General Permit No. 2 for “Storm Water Discharge Associated with Industrial Activity for 
Construction Activities” at the identified site. As co-permittee, the contractor understands that 
they and their company are legally required under the Clean Water Act and the Code of Iowa, 
to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of the Storm Pollution Prevention Plan 
developed under this NPDES permit and the terms of this NPDES permit. 
 

21

44

ITEM 4.



08 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 
 
The Engineer will measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the 2019 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION 
PROJECT in accordance with the 2019 edition of the Iowa “Statewide Urban Design and 
Specifications” (SUDAS) for public improvements and as further modified by the City of Cedar 
Falls’ 2018 Supplemental Specifications, except as amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 4 – Grouting Service Laterals 
The number of grouting service laterals will be measured on a per each location basis.  
 
09  BASIS OF PAYMENT 
 
Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement will be determined by multiplying 
the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit price as bid on 
the proposal form in accordance with the 2019 edition of the Iowa “STATEWIDE URBAN 
DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS) as amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ 2018 
Supplemental Specifications to the 2019 edition of the Iowa “STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN 
AND  SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS), except as amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 4 – Grouting Service Laterals 
The Contractor will be paid the contract unit price per each measured.  

 

22

45

ITEM 4.



DIVISION 4 - SUPPLEMENTAL PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the 2019 SANITARY 
SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT in accordance with the 2019 Edition of the Iowa 
“STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS) as amended by the City 
of Cedar Falls’ 2018 Supplemental Specifications to the 2019 edition of the Iowa 
“STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS), except as amended or 
supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 1-3 – Pipe Lining, 8 Inch, 12 Inch, and 18 Inch 
 
Traffic control as per I.D.O.T. Specification Section 2528.12 shall be incidental to bid items. 
The bypassing of sewage shall be incidental the bid items. The cleanup of the work site is 
incidental to the bid items including maintenance of surfaces such as paving, seeding, 
sodding and graveling, as needed, if damaged.  
 
Resin-Impregnated Tube for Cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) Lining shall be used per SUDAS 
Section 4050 2.05.  
 
Water-tight end seals are required. Sealing is incidental to lining. The Contractor is 
responsible for using one or more of the following methods to achieve a water tight seal at 
both ends of the liner: 
 
 1. Install gasketed stainless steel bands (LMK or pre-approved equal) inside each end 
of the host pipe prior to lining. This method shall be the only acceptable method for pipes 18” 
or larger in diameter, or those subject to hydrostatic pressure (ground water table) at any time 
of the year. 
  
 2. Apply a hydrophilic sealing material (Hydrotite or pre-approved equal) 360 degrees 
inside the circumference of the host pipe at each end.   
 
 3. Chemical pressure grout between the exterior of the pipe and annulus of the liner 
after lining at the manhole.   
 
The Contractor shall provide liner "coupon" specimens for testing to the Owner after 
installation.  The Owner will pay all expenses for the testing of these specimens.  The cost of 
retests made necessary by the failure of the samples of specimens to meet the specified 
requirements shall be paid for by the Contractor. Any liner installed failing this test shall be 
replaced at the Contractor’s expense. 
 

23

46

ITEM 4.



The Contractor shall furnish a general purpose felt/unsaturated polyester resin and catalyst 
system that meets ASTM Test Procedures D-638 and D-790 and the finished formed physical 
strengths specified herein. The Formed liner shall conform to the minimum structural 
standards as listed below: 
 
Physical Characteristics Test Procedure Pipe Material Felt/Resin 
Tensile Strength ASTM D-638 3000 psi 
Tensile Modulus ASTM D-638 300000 psi 

 
If, due to broken or offset pipe at the manhole wall, the pipe liner fails to make a tight seal, the 
Contractor shall apply a seal at that point.  The seal shall be of a resin mixture compatible 
with the liner pipe material. 
 
After insertion is completed, the Contractor shall supply suitable heat source equipment.  The 
equipment shall be capable of delivering the appropriate heat source through the lining 
section to uniformly raise the temperature to effect forming of the cured-in-place liner.  This 
temperature shall be determined by the system employed. 
 
Any steam for processing shall utilize monitoring methods and forming period as 
recommended by the liner manufacturer. If water is utilized, the water temperature in the line 
during the forming period shall be as recommended by the liner manufacturer. 
 
If the liner fails to form, the Contractor shall remove the failed liner and replace it with a new 
liner.  This work shall be performed without additional cost to Owner. 
 
Any defects which will affect in the foreseeable future or warranty period, the integrity or 
strength of the liner pipe shall be repaired at the Contractor's expense.  Allowance shall be 
given for excess pipe (rib) when the cross-sectional area has been reduced due to offset 
joints, partial collapse, out of round sections, etc. 
 
Item No. 4 – Building Sanitary Sewer Service Reconnection 
 
Traffic control as per I.D.O.T. Specification Section 2528.12 shall be incidental to bid items. 
The cleanup of the work site is incidental to the bid items including maintenance of surfaces 
such as paving, seeding, sodding and graveling, as needed, if damaged.  
 
After the pipe liner has been formed in place, the Contractor shall reconnect the existing 
active service connections as designated by the Owner.  This shall be done without 
excavation, and in the case of non-man entry pipes, from the interior of the pipeline by means 
of a television camera and a cutting device that re-establishes the service connections to not 
less than 90 percent capacity.  The CCTV inspection of the formed liner shall show a "dimple 
effect", which is an indication that there is a tight fit of the liner against the host pipe.  If this is 
not the case, the liner must be reprocessed until there is a good definition of a "dimple" at the 
service connection, before reconnecting the service connection.  

24

47

ITEM 4.



Item No. 5 – Grouting of Service Lines 
 
Chemical grouting equipment shall consist of a closed circuit television system, necessary 
chemical sealant containers, pumps, regulators, valves, hoses, etc., and lateral connection 
sealing packers for the various sizes of sewer pipes. 
 
Grout packer shall be cylindrical and have a diameter less than the pipe size and have 
cables attached at each end to pull it through the line.  The same equipment shall be used 
for both testing and sealing sewer lateral connections.  The packer shall contain a lateral 
sealing inversion tube.  This tube should be designed to accommodate two sizes of 
laterals, 4” and 6” diameters.  The inversion tubes are one length to facilitate sealing of 
approximately 2’ of the lateral. 
 
Sewer main shall be televised before service line is grouted; testing of grouted service will 
also be televised. 
 
The chemical grout shall be a type which has a documented record of satisfactory 
performance in sewer usage.  All grouting materials shall be delivered to the job site in the 
original, labeled, and unopened containers.  Grouts shall be Acrylic base gel chemical 
sealing material – Avanti AV-100 or equal.   
 
Laterals shall be air tested by isolating the area to be tested with the packer and applying 
positive pressure into the isolated “void” area.  The test procedure will consist of applying 
air pressure into each isolated void area.  The packer ends will be inflated to isolate the 
lateral and insert and inflatable inversion tube.  The lateral shall be tested with a gauge 
pressure of one-half (1/2) p.s.i. per foot of depth of sewer or a minimum of four (4) p.s.i., 
whichever is larger.  The void pressure will be observed during this test for a minimum of 
10 seconds.  If the void pressure drop is greater than 1 psi in 10 seconds, the lateral is 
considered to have failed the air test.  If no pressure can be built up, the connection will 
also have failed the test.  Any connection failing the test shall be sealed and retested 
utilizing the same method and procedures until it does pass the test.  The cost of retesting 
lateral connections shall be considered incidental and included in the cost of sealing 
sanitary sewer lateral connection. 
 
Item No. 6 – Mobilization 
 
CDBG Federal Grant funding is being utilized on this project.  It is the Contractor’s 
responsibility to familiarize themselves with the applicable federal requirements for bidding 
and construction these improvements.  Contractor coordination with federal requirements, 
including wage reporting and CDBG Project Construction Sign is incidental to this bid item. 
See Division 5 for additional CDBG Funding Required Provisions. 

25

48

ITEM 4.



 

FY 2019 Rehabilitation (Lining) List 
 (In Alphabetical Order by size) 

Video ID# Street Length Taps Description 
Line 
Size 
(in) 

1 Calumett 347 12 1000 Blk, MH 63 (9'6") - MH 61 (8'6") 8" 

2 Carlton 171 4 3200 Blk, MH 3094 () - MH 3095 () 8" 

3 Carlton 302 9 3200 Blk, MH 3095 () - MH 1246 () 8" 

4 Carlton 225 3 3300 Blk, MH 1246 () - MH 3980 8" 

5 Dallas 306 7 3500 Blk, MH 3265 (10'5") - MH 1382 (8'4") 
prodruding service 8" 

6 Homeway 208 6 3200 Blk, MH 3092 (9') - MH 1245 (8'11"),  8" 

7 Homeway 233 2 3300 Blk, MH 1245 (7'7") - MH 3363 (9') 8" 

8 Maplewood 163 2 MH 54 (10'1") - MH 480 (9'4") 12" 

9 Maplewood 77 0 MH 480 (9-4") - MH 1114 (11'4") 12" 

10 Maplewood 266 1 MH 1114 (11'4") - MH 1881 (11'7") 12" 

11 Maplewood 96 0 MH 1881 (11'7") - MH 1113 (14'11") 12" 

12 Maplewood 120 0 MH 1113 (14'11") - MH 1699 (12'9") 12" 

13 Maplewood 203 0 MH 1699 (12'9") - MH 1700 () 12" 

14 Maplewood 213 1 MH 1700 () - MH 1701 () 12" 

15 Maplewood 338 0 MH 1701 () - MH 1702 () 12" 

16 McClain 298 4 3100 Blk, MH 447 (5'2") - MH 2943 (3'5") 8" 

17 Orchard 320 4 400 blk, MH 1617 () - MH 1618 () 8" 

18 Orchard 348 0 700 Blk, MH 1640 () - MH 1543 () 8" 

19 Orchard  337 1 1000 Blk, MH 1621 () - MH1620 () 8" 

20 Orchard 199 2 1300 Blk, MH 1470 () - MH 1469 () 8" 

21 Panther Lane 302 5 3200 Blk, MH 1608 (8'9") - MH 1609 (8'6") 8" 

22 Panther Lane 232 1 3400 Blk, MH 1610 (11'11") - MH 1607 
(11'10") under Dry Run Creek 8" 

23 Pridemore 312 7 3300 Blk, MH 3088 (7'4") - 3089 (8'7") 8" 

24 Starbeck Circle 149 1 1500 Blk, MH 3665 (8'11") - MH 3666 (7'7"),  8" 

25 Starbeck Circle 265 1 1600 Blk, MH 3666 (7'7") - MH 1666 (9'3") 8" 

26

49

ITEM 4.



26 Starbeck Circle 246 2 1600 Blk, MH 1666 (9'3") - MH 1667 (11'2") 8" 

27 Starbeck Circle 46 0 1600 Blk, MH 1667 (11'2") - MH 1610 (11'11") 8" 

28 East 3rd 356 0 100 Blk, MH 784 () - MH 3369 () 18" 

29 West 3rd 300 8 1200 Blk, MH 707 () - MH 496 () 8" 

30 West 3rd 300 8 1100 Blk, MH 496 () - MH 494 () 8" 

31 West 3rd 350 8 1000 Blk, MH 494 () - MH 3034 () 8" 

32 West 3rd 345 8 900 Blk, MH 3034 (7'8") - MH 222 (8'5") 8" 

33 West 3rd 350 10 800 Blk, MH 222 (8'5") - MH 2812 (7'9") 8" 

34 West 3rd 350 8 700 Blk, MH 2812 (7'9") - MH 3172 () 12" 

35 West 2nd 350 8 1000 Blk, MH 495 (8'9") - MH 643 (8'7") 8" 

36 West 2nd 345 8 900 Blk, MH 643 (8'7") to MH 640 (8'5") 8" 

37 Walnut 340 8 200 Blk, MH 3174 () - MH 3172 () 8" 

38 Olive 335 8 300 Blk, MH 2812 () - MH 226 () 8" 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27

50

ITEM 4.



DIVISION 5 – CDBG FUNDING REQUIRED PROVISIONS 
 
See Following Pages: 
 

Wage Determination (9 pages) 
Required Federal Contract Language for CDBG Funded Contracts (12 pages) 
Payroll Form (2 pages) 
On-site Interview Forms/Online Employee Questionnaire/Complaint Intake (10 pages) 
Section 3 (9 pages) 

  Project Sign (1 page)  

28

51

ITEM 4.



29

52

ITEM 4.



30

53

ITEM 4.



31

54

ITEM 4.



32

55

ITEM 4.



33

56

ITEM 4.



34

57

ITEM 4.



35

58

ITEM 4.



36

59

ITEM 4.



37

60

ITEM 4.



38

61

ITEM 4.



39

62

ITEM 4.



Required Federal Contract Language 

For 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funded Contracts 

40

63

ITEM 4.



Federal Labor Standards Provisions

Applicability 
The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United 
States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the 
provisions applicable to such Federal assistance. 

A.1. (i) Minimum Wages. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid 
unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except 
such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR 
Part 3), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed 
at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and 
made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and 
such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under 
Section l(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or 
mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more 
than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly 
period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.  Such laborers and mechanics shall 
be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually 
performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more 
than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: 
Provided, that the employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is 
performed.  The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 
5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at 
the site of the work in a prominent and accessible, place where it can be easily seen by the workers. 

(ii)(a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under 
the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination.  HUD shall approve an additional classification 
and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria have been met: 

(1)The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; 
and 

(2)The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 

(3)The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates 
contained in the wage determination. 

(b)If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, 
and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits 
where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator of the Wage and 
Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. 20210. The 
Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action 
within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that 
additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.) 

(c)In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and 
HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe 
benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and 
the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized 
representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or 
its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.  (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget 
under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.) 

(d)The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of this 
paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which 
work is performed in the classification. 

(iii)Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe 
benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage 
determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 

41

64

ITEM 4.



(iv)If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the 
wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits 
under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that 
the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set 
aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. (Approved by the Office of 
Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)  

2. Withholding. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of
the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be 
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers, employed by the 
contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract In the event of failure to pay any laborer 
or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the 
wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, 
take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds 
until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, disburse such amounts 
withheld for and on account of the contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they are due. The 
Comptroller General shall make such disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act contracts.  

3. (i) Payrolls and basic records.  Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during
the course of the work preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of 
the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct 
classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits 
or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-bacon Act), daily and weekly number of 
hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.  Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5 
(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing 
benefits under a plan or program described in Section l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records 
which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, 
and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which 
show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.  Contractors employing apprentices or 
trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and 
certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed 
in the applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 
and 1215-0017.)  

(ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to 
HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit 
the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee. The payrolls 
submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i) 
except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the 
payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the 
employee’s social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional 
Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at 
http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the 
submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security 
number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to HUD or its designee if the 
agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant 
sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour 
Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage 
requirements. It is not a violation of this subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses 
and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to HUD or its designee. 
(Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149.)  

(b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of Compliance,” signed by the contractor or subcontractor 
or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the 
following:  

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(ii), the 
appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is  
correct and complete; 

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the 
payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions 
have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 
CFR Part 3;  

42

65

ITEM 4.



(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash 
equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the 
contract.  

(c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall 
satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of Compliance” required by subparagraph A.3.(ii)(b).  

(d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal 
prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.  

(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph A.3.(i) available for inspection, 
copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall permit 
such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to 
submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, 
sponsor, applicant or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, 
advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records 
available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.  

4. Apprentices and Trainees.
(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when 
they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. 
Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor 
Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 
days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in 
the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State 
Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio 
of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the 
contractor as to the entire work force under  

the registered program.  Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio 
permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for 
the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which 
its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman’s hourly rate) specified in 
the contractor’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than 
the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the 
journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in 
accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe 
benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable 
classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, 
fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer 
and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship 
program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for 
the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.  

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate 
for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant ‘,to and individually registered in a program which has received 
prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. 
The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the 
Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved 
program for the trainee’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the 
applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee 
program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits 
listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an 
apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which 
provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not 
registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not 
less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.  In addition, any trainee 
performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the 
applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training 
Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less 
than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.  

43

66

ITEM 4.



(iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall 
be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR 
Part 30.  

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3
which are incorporated by reference in this contract 

6. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in subparagraphs 1
through 11 in this paragraph A and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, and 
a copy of the applicable prevailing wage decision, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses 
in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower 
tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in this paragraph.  

7. Contract termination; debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of
the contract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and
Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract 

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not
be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures 
of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes 
between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the 
employees or their representatives.  

10. (i) Certification of Eligibility.  By entering into this contract the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor
any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor’s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government 
contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or 
participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.  
(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by 
virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD 
programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.  
(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. Additionally, U.S. 
Criminal Code, Section 1 01 0, Title 18, U.S.C., “Federal Housing Administration transactions”, provides in part: “Whoever, 
for the purpose of... influencing in any way the action of such Administration... makes, utters or publishes any statement 
knowing the same to be false... shall be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or both.”  

11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees. No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or other
labor standards provisions of this Contract are applicable shall be discharged or in any other manner discriminated against 
by the Contractor or any subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be 
instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating to the labor standards 
applicable under this Contract to his employer.  

B. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The provisions of this paragraph B are applicable where the amount 
of the prime contract exceeds $100,000. As used in this paragraph, the terms “laborers” and “mechanics” include watchmen 
and guards.  

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require 
or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek 
in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such laborer or 
mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked 
in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.  

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in 
subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid 
wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under 
contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated 
damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed 
in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which 
such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in sub paragraph (1) of this paragraph. 

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written 
request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys 
payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contract, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and 

44

67

ITEM 4.



Safety Standards Act which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to be necessary to 
satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause 
set forth in subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.  

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph 
(1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.  

C. Health and Safety. The provisions of this paragraph C are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds 
$100,000. 

(1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, 
hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards 
promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation. 

(2) The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 and 
failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 
(Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat 96). 40 USC 3701 et seq.  

(3) The contractor shall include the provisions of this paragraph in every subcontract so that such provisions will be binding 
on each subcontractor. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontractor as the Secretary of Housing 
and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions. 

45

68

ITEM 4.



REQUIRED CONTRACT LANGUAGE 

All project contracts shall contain at a minimum the following provisions, as appropriate. 

ALL CONTRACTS 

1. Access and Maintenance of Records

The contractor must maintain all required records for five years after final payments are made and all other 
pending matters are closed. 

At any time during normal business hours and as frequently as is deemed necessary, the contractor shall 
make available to the Iowa Economic Development Authority, the State Auditor, the General Accounting 
Office, and the Department of Housing and Urban Development, for their examination, all of its records 
pertaining to all matters covered by this contract and permit these agencies to audit, examine, make excerpts 
or transcripts from such records, contract, invoices, payrolls, personnel records, conditions of employment, 
and all other matters covered by this contract. 

2. Civil Rights

The Contractor must comply with the following laws and regulations: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352).
States that no person may be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance on the basis of 
race, color, or national origin. 

• Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair Housing Act), as amended.

• Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965.
This Act mirrors the Federal Civil Rights Act. 

• Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C.
5309). 

Provides that no person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or subjected to 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or handicap under any program or 
activity funded in part or in whole under Title I of the Act. 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.)
Provides that no person on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 
of or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 
assistance. 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-112, 29 U.S.C. 794).
Provides that no otherwise qualified individual shall solely by reason of his/her handicap be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be discriminated against under any program or 
activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 

• Americans with Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213)

46

69

ITEM 4.



Provides comprehensive civil rights to individuals with disabilities in the areas of employment, public 
accommodations, state and local government services, and telecommunications. 

• Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u).
Provides to the greatest extent feasible, that training and employment opportunities be made available 
to lower-income residents of project areas and that contracts be awarded to small businesses located 
within the project area or owned in substantial part by project area residents. 

• Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order 11375.
Provides that no one be discriminated in employment. 

• Federal Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259.

3. Termination Clause

All contracts utilizing CDBG funds must contain a termination clause that specifies the following: 
• Under what conditions the clause may be imposed.
• The form the termination notice must take (e.g., certified letter).
• The time frame required between the notice of termination and its effective date.
• The method used to compute the final payment(s) to the contractor.

4. Certification regarding government-wide restriction on lobbying.

All contracts utilizing CDBG funds must contain the following certification concerning restriction of lobbying: 

"The Recipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

i.  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Recipient, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

ii.  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee, or an employee of a Member of congress in connection with this Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Recipient shall complete and submit Standard
Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Federal Lobbying" in accordance with its instruction.

iii. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents
for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans,
and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code.  Any person who fails to file the required certification 
shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure." 

47

70

ITEM 4.



5. Lead-Safe Housing Regulations (As applicable)

24 CFR Part 35 et. al. 

Requirements for Notification, Evaluation and Reduction of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Federally Owned 
Residential Properties and Housing Receiving Federal Assistance, Final Rule 

6. Standards and Policies Relating to Energy Efficiency

Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871 

Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy 
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act. 

7. Notice of Awarding Agency Requirements and Regulations Pertaining to Reporting

The Contractor must provide information as necessary and as requested by the Iowa Economic Development 
Authority for the purpose of fulfilling all reporting requirements related to the CDBG program. 

ALL CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $10,000 

In addition to the preceding provisions, all contracts in excess of $10,000 must include the following language, 
pursuant to Federal Executive Orders 11246 and 11375: 

"During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their 
race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to the 
following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff 
or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions 
of this nondiscrimination clause. 

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard 
to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

(3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the 
agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's 
commitments under Section 202 of the Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall 
post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 
employment. 

(4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, 
and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

(5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant 
thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the 
Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, 
and orders. 

48

71

ITEM 4.



(6) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clause of this contract or 
with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended 
in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 
such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order No. 
11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as 
otherwise provided by law. 

(7) The contractor will include the provisions of Paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or 
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued 
pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such 
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The contractor will take such action 
with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the contracting agency may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the 
event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 
vendor as a result of such direction by the contracting agency, the contractor may request the United 
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

ALL CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $100,000 

In addition to the preceding provisions, contracts in excess of $100,000 shall require compliance with the 
following laws and regulations: 

Section 306 of the Clean Air Acts (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)). 

Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368). 

Executive Order 11738. 

EPA Regulations - 40 CFR, Part 15. 

Clean Air and Water Acts - required clauses: 

This clause is required in all third party contracts involving projects subject to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 
1857 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.), and the regulations of the 
Environmental Protection Agency with respect to 40 CFR Part 15, as amended.  It should also be mentioned 
in the bid document. 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows: 

(1) The CONTRACTOR will certify that any facility to be utilized in the performance of any nonexempt 
contract or subcontract is not listed on the Excluded Party Listing System pursuant to 40 CFR 32. 

(2) The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air Act, 
as amended, (42 U.S.C. 1857c-8) and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
amended (33 U.S.C. 1318) relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and information, as well 
as all other requirements specified in said Section 114 and Section 308, and all regulations and 
guidelines issued thereunder. 

(3) The CONTRACTOR agrees that as a condition for the award of the contract, prompt notice will be 
given of any notification received from the Director, Office of Federal Activities, Environmental 
Protection Agency, indicating that a facility utilized or to be utilized for the contract is under 
consideration to be listed on the Excluded Party Listing System. 

49

72

ITEM 4.



(4) The CONTRACTOR agrees that it will include or cause to be included the criteria and requirements in 
Paragraph (1) through (4) of this section in every nonexempt subcontract and require every 
subcontractor to take such action as the Government may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions. 

ALL CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $2,000 

In addition to the preceding provisions, all construction contracts in excess of $2,000 must include the Federal 
Labor Standards Provisions (verbatim) found in Appendix 2 under Required Contract Provisions.  (Housing 
rehabilitation contracts of less than 8 units are excluded from this requirement.) 

50

73

ITEM 4.



HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1968 

SECTION 3 CLAUSE 

A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing 
direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is subject 
to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 
U.S.C. 1701 u.  Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and 
employment be given lower income residents of the project area and contracts for work in connection with 
the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons 
residing in the area of the project. 

B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the regulations 
issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development set forth in 24 CFR Section 
3, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued there under prior to the execution of this 
contract.  The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability 
that would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which he has 
a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding if any, a notice advising said labor 
organization or workers’ representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post 
copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment or 
training. 

D. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract; for work in connection with 
the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient of Federal financial assistance, take 
appropriate action pursuant to the Subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of 
regulations issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Section 3.  The contractor 
will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found 
in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Section 3 and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor 
has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements of these 
regulations. 

E. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR Section 3, and all 
applicable rules and orders of the Department issued there under prior to the execution of the contract, 
shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant 
or recipient for such assistance, its successors, and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall 
subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its successors, and assigns to those 
sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through Federal assistance is provided, and 
to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Section 135.135. 

51

74

ITEM 4.



(8
)  

D
ED

U
C

TI
O

N
S 

(7
) 

(6
) 

(5
) 

(4
) D

A
Y 

A
N

D
 D

A
TE

 
(3

) 
(2

) 

O
 

O
 

S S S S 

U.
S.

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f L
ab

or
 

W
ag

e 
an

d 
H

ou
r D

iv
is

io
n 

PA
YR

O
LL

 
(F

or
 C

on
tra

ct
or

’s
 O

pt
io

na
l U

se
; S

ee
 In

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 a

t w
w

w
.d

ol
.g

ov
/e

sa
//w

hd
/fo

rm
s/

w
h3

47
in

st
r.h

tm
) 

P
er

so
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

un
le

ss
 it

 d
is

pl
ay

s 
a 

cu
rr

en
tly

 v
al

id
 O

M
B 

co
nt

ro
l n

um
be

r. 
R

ev
. D

ec
. 2

00
8  

N
A

M
E 

O
F 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 
O

R 
SU

B
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 

A
D

D
R

ES
S 

O
M

B
 N

o.
: 1

23
5-

00
08

 
E

xp
ire

s:
 0

2/
28

/2
01

8 

PA
YR

O
LL

 N
O

. 
FO

R 
W

EE
K

 E
N

D
IN

G
 

PR
O

JE
C

T 
A

N
D

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 

PR
O

JE
C

T 
O

R 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

N
O

. 

(1
) 

( 9
) 

N
A

M
E 

A
N

D
 IN

D
IV

ID
U

A
L 

ID
EN

TI
FY

IN
G

 N
UM

B
ER

 
(e

.g
., 

LA
ST

 F
O

U
R

 D
IG

IT
S 

O
F 

SO
CI

A
L 

SE
C

U
R

IT
Y 

N
U

M
B

ER
) O

F 
W

O
R

K
ER

 

N
E

T 
W

AG
E

S 
P

AI
D

 F
O

R
 

W
E

E
K

 

W
hil

e 
co

m
ple

tio
n 

of 
Fo

rm
 W

H-
34

7 i
s o

pti
on

al,
 it 

is 
m

an
da

to
ry 

fo
r c

ov
er

ed
 co

nt
ra

cto
rs 

an
d 

su
bc

on
tra

cto
rs 

pe
rfo

rm
ing

 w
or

k o
n 

Fe
de

ra
lly

 fin
an

ce
d 

or
 a

ss
ist

ed
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 co
nt

ra
cts

 to
 re

sp
on

d t
o 

th
e i

nf
or

m
ati

on
 co

lle
cti

on
 co

nt
ain

ed
 in

 2
9 

C.
F.

R.
 §

§ 
3.

3, 
5.

5(
a)

. T
he

 C
op

ela
nd

 A
ct 

(4
0 

U.
S.

C.
 §

 3
14

5)
 co

nt
ra

cto
rs 

an
d 

su
bc

on
tra

cto
rs 

pe
rfo

rm
ing

 w
or

k o
n 

Fe
de

ra
lly

 fin
an

ce
d 

or
 a

ss
ist

ed
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 co
nt

ra
cts

 to
 “f

ur
nis

h 
a 

we
ek

ly 
sta

te
m

en
t w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o t

he
 w

ag
es

 p
aid

 e
ac

h 
em

plo
ye

e 
du

rin
g t

he
 p

re
ce

din
g 

we
ek

.” 
U.

S.
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f L

ab
or

 (D
OL

) r
eg

ula
tio

ns
 at

 2
9 

C.
F.

R.
 §

 5
.5

 (a
)(3

)(i
i) 

re
qu

ire
 co

nt
ra

cto
rs 

to
 su

bm
it w

ee
kly

 a
 co

py
 o

f a
ll p

ay
ro

lls
 to

 th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l a

ge
nc

y c
on

tra
cti

ng
 fo

r o
r f

ina
nc

ing
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 p
ro

jec
t, 

ac
co

m
pa

nie
d 

by
 a

 si
gn

ed
 “S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f C

om
pli

an
ce

” in
dic

ati
ng

 th
at 

th
e 

pa
yr

oll
s a

re
 co

rre
ct 

an
d 

co
m

ple
te

 a
nd

 th
at 

ea
ch

 la
bo

re
r o

r m
ec

ha
nic

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pa

id 
no

t le
ss

 th
an

 th
e 

pr
op

er
 D

av
is-

Ba
co

n 
pr

ev
ail

ing
 w

ag
e 

ra
te

 fo
r t

he
 w

or
k p

er
fo

rm
ed

. D
OL

 a
nd

 fe
de

ra
l c

on
tra

cti
ng

 a
ge

nc
ies

 re
ce

ivi
ng

 th
is 

inf
or

m
at

ion
 re

vie
w 

th
e i

nf
or

m
ati

on
 to

 
de

te
rm

ine
 th

at 
th

e 
em

plo
ye

es
 h

av
e 

re
ce

ive
d l

eg
all

y r
eq

uir
ed

 w
ag

es
 a

nd
 fr

ing
e 

be
ne

fits
. 

Pu
bl

ic
 B

ur
de

n 
St

at
em

en
t 

W
e  

es
tim

at
e t

ha
t is

 w
ill 

ta
ke

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

of 
55

 m
inu

te
s t

o 
co

m
ple

te 
th

is 
co

lle
cti

on
, in

clu
din

g t
im

e f
or

 re
vie

wi
ng

 in
str

uc
tio

ns
, s

ea
rc

hin
g 

ex
ist

ing
 d

at
a 

so
ur

ce
s, 

ga
th

er
ing

 a
nd

 m
ain

ta
ini

ng
 th

e 
da

ta
 n

ee
de

d, 
an

d 
co

m
ple

tin
g 

an
d 

re
vie

wi
ng

 th
e 

co
lle

cti
on

 o
f in

fo
rm

ati
on

.  
If 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
ny

 co
m

m
en

ts 
re

ga
rd

ing
 th

es
e 

es
tim

at
es

 o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 a
sp

ec
t o

f t
his

 co
lle

cti
on

, 
inc

lud
ing

 su
gg

es
tio

ns
 fo

r r
ed

uc
ing

 th
is 

bu
rd

en
, s

en
d t

he
m 

to
 th

e 
Ad

mi
nis

tra
to

r, 
W

ag
e 

an
d 

Ho
ur

 D
ivi

sio
n, 

ES
A,

 U
.S

. D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f L
ab

or
, R

oo
m 

S3
50

2, 
20

0 
Co

ns
tit

uti
on

 A
ve

nu
e, 

N.
W

. W
as

hin
gt

on
, D

.C
. 2

02
10

 

(o
ve

r)
 

O
 

S O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

O
 

S S S 

H
O

U
R

S 
W

O
R

K
ED

 E
A

C
H

 D
A

Y 
TO

T
A

L 
D

E
D

U
C

TI
O

N
S

 
O

TH
E

R
 

W
IT

H
- 

H
O

LD
IN

G
 

TA
X 

FI
C

A
 

G
R

O
SS

 
AM

O
U

N
T 

EA
R

N
ED

 
R

A
TE

 
O

F 
PA

Y 
TO

TA
L 

H
O

U
R

S 
W

O
R

K
 

C
LA

SS
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
 

NO. OF 
WITHHOLDING 
EXEMPTIONS 

OT. OR ST. 

52

75

ITEM 4.



D
at

e 

I, 
 

, 
(N

am
e 

of
 S

ig
na

to
ry

 P
ar

ty
) 

(T
itl

e)
 

do
 h

er
eb

y 
st

at
e:

 

(1
) 

Th
at

 I 
pa

y 
or

 s
up

er
vi

se
 th

e 
pa

ym
en

t o
f p

er
so

ns
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

 o
n 

th
e 

(C
on

tra
ct

or
 o

r S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
) 

; t
ha

t d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
(B

ui
ld

in
g 

or
 W

or
k)

 

 d
ay

 o
f  

,  
, a

nd
 e

nd
in

g 
th

e 
 

da
y 

of
  

, 
al

l p
er

so
ns

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 o

n 
sa

id
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ai

d 
th

e 
fu

ll 
w

ee
kl

y 
w

ag
es

 e
ar

ne
d,

 th
at

 n
o 

re
ba

te
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

or
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

ei
th

er
 d

ire
ct

ly
 o

r i
nd

ire
ct

ly
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 s

ai
d 

 fr
om

 th
e 

fu
ll 

(C
on

tra
ct

or
 o

r S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
) 

w
ee

kl
y 

w
ag

es
 e

ar
ne

d 
by

 a
ny

 p
er

so
n 

an
d 

th
at

 n
o 

de
du

ct
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
ei

th
er

 d
ire

ct
ly

 o
r 

in
di

re
ct

ly
 fr

om
 th

e 
fu

ll 
w

ag
es

 e
ar

ne
d 

by
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 p
er

m
is

si
bl

e 
de

du
ct

io
ns

 a
s 

de
fin

ed
  

in
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, P

ar
t 3

 (2
9 

C
.F

.R
. S

ub
tit

le
 A

), 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f L
ab

or
  u

nd
er

 th
e 

  
C

op
el

an
d 

A
ct

, a
s 

am
en

de
d 

(4
8 

S
ta

t. 
94

8 
63

 S
ta

rt.
 1

08
, 7

2 
S

ta
t. 

96
7;

 7
6 

S
ta

t. 
35

7;
 4

0 
U

.S
.C

. §
 

31
45

), 
an

d 
de

sc
rib

ed
 b

el
ow

: 

(2
) 

Th
at

 a
ny

 p
ay

ro
lls

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

un
de

r 
th

is
 c

on
tra

ct
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 a

bo
ve

 p
er

io
d 

ar
e 

co
rr

ec
t 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e;
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

 w
ag

e 
ra

te
s 

fo
r 

la
bo

re
rs

 a
nd

 m
ec

ha
ni

cs
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 t
he

re
in

  
ar

e 
no

t 
le

ss
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 w

ag
e 

ra
te

s 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 a

ny
 w

ag
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 

in
to

 t
he

 c
on

tra
ct

; 
th

at
 t

he
 c

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 s
et

 f
or

th
 t

he
re

in
 f

or
 e

ac
h 

la
bo

re
r 

or
 m

ec
ha

ni
c 

co
nf

or
m

 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

. 

(3
) 

Th
at

 a
ny

 a
pp

re
nt

ic
es

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 in

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
pe

rio
d 

ar
e 

du
ly

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

 a
 b

on
a 

fid
e 

A
pp

re
nt

ic
es

hi
p 

pr
og

ra
m

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 w

ith
 a

 S
ta

te
 a

pp
re

nt
ic

es
hi

p 
ag

en
cy

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
 

B
ur

ea
u 

of
 A

pp
re

nt
ic

es
hi

p 
an

d 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
, U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f L

ab
or

, o
r i

f  
no

  s
uc

h 
ag

en
cy

 e
xi

st
s 

in
 a

 S
ta

te
, a

re
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

B
ur

ea
u 

of
  A

pp
re

nt
ic

es
hi

p 
 a

nd
  T

ra
in

in
g,

  
U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f L

ab
or

. 

(4
) 

Th
at

: 
(a

) 
W

H
E

R
E

 F
R

IN
G

E
 B

E
N

E
FI

TS
 A

R
E

 P
A

ID
 T

O
 A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 P

LA
N

S
, 

FU
N

D
S

, 
O

R
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

S
 

_ 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
 b

as
ic

  
ho

ur
ly

 w
ag

e 
 r

at
es

 p
ai

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
la

bo
re

r 
or

 m
ec

ha
ni

c 
lis

te
d

in
 t

he
 a

bo
ve

 r
ef

er
en

ce
d 

pa
yr

ol
l, 

pa
ym

en
ts

 o
f 

fri
ng

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
 a

s 
 l

is
te

d 
 i

n 
 t

he
 c

on
tra

ct
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
or

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f 

su
ch

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s,

 
ex

ce
pt

 a
s 

no
te

d 
in

 s
ec

tio
n 

4(
c)

 b
el

ow
.  

(b
) 

W
H

E
R

E
 F

R
IN

G
E

 B
E

N
E

FI
TS

 A
R

E
 P

A
ID

 IN
 C

A
S

H
 

_ 
E

ac
h 

la
bo

re
r o

r m
ec

ha
ni

c 
lis

te
d 

in
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

ai
d,

as
 in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 th

e 
pa

yr
ol

l, 
an

 a
m

ou
nt

 n
ot

 le
ss

 th
an

 th
e 

su
m

 o
f t

he
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 b
as

ic
 

ho
ur

ly
 w

ag
e 

ra
te

 p
lu

s 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 re

qu
ire

d 
fri

ng
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

as
 li

st
ed

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
, e

xc
ep

t a
s 

no
te

d 
in

 s
ec

tio
n 

4 
(c

) 
be

lo
w

. 

(c
) 

E
X

C
E

P
TI

O
N

S
 

E
X

C
E

P
TI

O
N

 (C
R

A
FT

) 
E

X
P

LA
N

A
TI

O
N

 

R
E

M
A

R
K

S
 

N
A

M
E

 A
N

D
 T

IT
LE

 
S

IG
N

A
TU

R
E

 

TH
E

 W
IL

LF
U

L 
FA

LS
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
A

N
Y

 O
F 

T
H

E
 A

B
O

V
E

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

 M
A

Y
 S

U
B

JE
C

T 
TH

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 O

R
 

S
U

B
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 T

O
 C

IV
IL

 O
R

 C
R

IM
IN

A
L 

P
R

O
S

E
C

U
TI

O
N

. 
S

E
E

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 1
00

1 
O

F 
TI

TL
E

 1
8 

A
N

D
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 2

31
 

O
F 

TI
TL

E
 3

1 
O

F 
TH

E
 U

N
IT

E
D

 S
T

A
TE

S
 C

O
D

E
.  

53

76

ITEM 4.



Record of 
Employee Interview 

U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of Labor Relations 

OMB Approval No. 2501-0009 
(exp. 09/30/2017) 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not 
required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. The information is collected to ensure compliance with the Federal labor standards by 
recording interviews with construction workers. The information collected will assist HUD in the conduct of compliance monitoring; the information will be used to test the veracity of 
certified payroll reports submitted by the employer. Sensitive Information. The information collected on this form is considered sensitive and is protected by the Privacy Act. The 
Privacy Act requires that these records be maintained with appropriate administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to ensure their security and confidentiality. In addition, 
these records should be protected against any anticipated threats or hazards to their security or integrity that could result in substantial harm, embarrassment, inconvenience, or 
unfairness to any individual on whom the information is maintained. The information collected herein is voluntary, and any information provided shall be kept confidential. 

1a. Project Name 2a. Employee Name 

1b. Project Number 2b. Employee Phone Number (including area code) 

1c. Contractor or Subcontractor (Employer) 2c. Employee Home Address & Zip Code 

2d. Verification of identification? 
Yes No 

3a. How long on this 
job? 

3b. Last date on this 
job before today? 

3c. No. of hours last 
day on this job? 

4a. Hourly rate of pay? 4b. Fringe Benefits? 4c. Pay stub? 

Vacation Yes No Yes No 

Medical Yes No 
Pension Yes No 

5. Your job classification(s) (list all) --- continue on a separate sheet if necessary

6. Your duties

7. Tools or equipment used

Y N Y N 
8. Are you an apprentice or trainee? 10. Are you paid at least time and ½ for all hours worked in excess of 40 in a week?

9. Are you paid for all hours worked? 11. Have you ever been threatened or coerced into giving up any part of your pay?
12a. Employee Signature 12b. Date 

13. Duties observed by the Interviewer (Please be specific.)

14. Remarks

15a. Interviewer name (please print) 15b. Signature of Interviewer 15c. Date of interview 

Payroll Examination 
16. Remarks

17a. Signature of Payroll Examiner 17b. Date 

Previous editions are obsolete Form HUD-11 (08/2004) 

54

77

ITEM 4.



Historial de Entrevista del 
Empleado 

Departamento de Vivienda y 
Desarrollo Urbano de EE.UU. 
Oficina de Relaciones Laborales 

Aprobación de OMB No. 2501-0009 
(exp. 09/30/2017) 

Se estima que la tarea de recolección de esta información pública es de aproximadamente 15 minutos por respuesta, incluso el tiempo para examinar instrucciones, buscar 
fuentes de datos existentes, recopilar y mantener datos necesarios, y completar y examinar la recopilación de la información. Esta agencia no puede recopilar esta información y 
no se requiere que usted llene este formulario, a menos que éste exhiba un número de control válido de la Oficina de Administración y Presupuesto (OMB, por sus siglas en 
inglés. La información que se recopila tiene la finalidad de garantizar la conformidad a las normas laborales Federales mediante entrevistas con obreros de construcción. La 
información recopilada asistirá a HUD a conducir el monitoreo de conformidad; la información se usará para examinar la veracidad de los informes de nómina certificados 
presentados por el patrón. Información confidencial. La información recopilada en este formulario es considerada confidencial y está protegida por la Ley de Privacidad.  La 
Ley de Privacidad requiere que estos archivos se mantengan con salvaguardas administrativos, técnicos, y físicos apropiados para garantizar su seguridad y confidencialidad. 
Además, estos archivos deberán ser protegidos contra cualquier amenaza anticipada o riesgos a su seguridad o integridad, que podría causar daño sustancial, vergüenza, 
inconveniencias, o injusticias a cualquier individuo de quien se mantiene la información. La información recopilada aquí es voluntaria y cualquier información proporcionada 
será mantenida como confidencial. 

1a. Nombre del proyecto 2a. Nombre del empleado 

1b. Número del proyecto 2b. Número de teléfono del empleado (incluso prefijo local) 

1c. Contratista o subcontratista (Patrón) 2c. Dirección residencial del empleado y código postal 

2d. ¿Verificación de identificación? 
Sí No 

3a. ¿Cuánto tiempo 
en este trabajo? 

3b. ¿Último día en 
este trabajo antes de 
hoy? 

3c. ¿No. de horas en 
su ultimo día en este 
trabajo? 

4a. ¿Salario por hora? 4b. ¿Beneficios complementarios? 4c. ¿Talonario de 
paga? 

Vacaciones Sí No Sí No 

Médicos Sí No 
Pensión Sí No 

5. Clasificación(es) de su trabajo(s) (enumere todas) --- continúe en una página separada si es necesario

6. Sus deberes

7. Herramientas o equipo usado

S N S N 
8. ¿Es aprendiz? 10. ¿Le pagan al menos tiempo y medio por todas las horas trabajadas superior a 40

horas semanales? 
9. ¿Le pagan todas las horas
trabajadas? 

11. ¿Alguna vez ha sido amenazado o coercionado a entregar parte de su paga?

12a. Firma del empleado 12b. Fecha 

13. Deberes observados por el entrevistador (Por favor sea específico.)

14. Comentarios

15a. Nombre del entrevistador (use letra de imprenta) 15b. Firma del entrevistador 15c. Fecha de la entrevista 

Examinación de Nómina 
16. Comentarios

17a. Firma del examinador de nómina 17b. Fecha 

55

78

ITEM 4.



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Office of Labor Relations 
ON-LINE EMPLOYEE QUESTIONNAIRE 

HUD FORM 4730E 
OMB Approval No. 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018) 

Many construction projects assisted by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) are covered by federal 
labor standards.  These standards include the payment of prevailing wage rates as determined by the Secretary of Labor, 
otherwise known as Davis-Bacon wage rates.  In addition, many projects are covered by overtime rules that require the 
payment of one and one-half times the regular rate of pay for hours worked over 40 in a workweek.  Construction workers 
who are paid less than prevailing wages for the work they perform or who do not receive time and one-half for overtime hours 
worked may be entitled to wage restitution (back wages).  Also, maintenance workers employed at many public and Indian 
housing projects are covered by prevailing wage rates determined by HUD.  Maintenance workers that do not receive 
prevailing wages or, in some cases, overtime pay, may also be entitled to wage restitution.  
If you think that you may not have been paid correctly for construction or maintenance work that you performed on a 
HUDassisted project, you can complete this questionnaire and submit it to HUD electronically by clicking on the “Submit” 
button at the end of the form.  Or you can print your completed form and mail it to HUD at the following address:  

U.S. Department of HUD 

Office of Labor Relations 
451 7th Street, SW, Room 2102 Washington, 

DC   20410 

We will review the information you provide and will let you know if you have been underpaid and, if so, we will work to ensure 
that you receive any additional wages that you may have earned.  Please note that if we believe you have been underpaid, 
we will probably need to contact you for more information.  
Please respond to all of the questions listed below.  Your responses will be considered confidential and will not be released 
to anyone without your permission.  Your answers should refer only to the time during which you worked on the HUD 
assisted project.   

If you have any questions, please contact a HUD Labor Relations Specialist.  A list of contact names, addresses, 
telephone numbers, email addresses and the geographic areas they cover can be found at:  www.hud.gov/offices/olr 
Employer Project name, number and location 

1. Your Name 2. Your Job title

3. When did you work on this project?

From:         To: 

4. Where did you work (job site, shop, etc.)?

5. What duties did you perform on this project?

6. What tools (if any) did you use to perform your duties on the project?

7. How was your wage determined? (hourly wage, salary,
piece work, etc.) 

8. If your wage was based on piece work, describe how
pay was determined (i.e., $ per board, per unit, etc.)? 

56

79

ITEM 4.



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

Office of Labor Relations 
ON-LINE EMPLOYEE QUESTIONNAIRE

HUD FORM 4730E 
OMB Approval No. 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018) 

9a. What was your hourly wage rate on 
the project?  

$  

10a. Did you receive fringe 
benefits?  

Yes          No  

10b. If yes, which fringe benefits? 

Vacation 
Medical 
Pension  Specify:  
Other 

9b. If you know, what was the required 
prevailing wage for this project?  

$  

11. On average,
how many hours 
did you work each 
week? 

12. Did you ever
work over 40 
hours in a single 
week? 

13. If you worked over 40 hours
per week, did you receive 
overtime pay (1½ times your 
regular rate of pay)? 

14. If you did not receive overtime pay for
overtime hours worked, identify the 
number of weeks in which overtime was 
worked and/or total overtime hours 

Yes     No  Yes           No   

15. Identify other employees (name, address, phone) who worked with you and who could confirm the type of work you
performed 

16. Identify employees (name, address, phone) you supervised

How may we contact you? 
Current address (Include apartment number, if any) (Street/City/State/Zip Code) Home Phone Number (including area 

code)  

Permanent/Alternate Address (if current address is temporary) Alternate Phone Number(s) (including 
area code)  

Cell Phone  
Email address Date 

Disclosure Authorization 

I authorize the HUD representative to disclose my name and the information I have submitted to the extent necessary to 
enforce my rights under the Acts administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing 
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 
information. The information is considered sensitive and will not be released without your approval.  Provision of this information is voluntary. 
This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) control number.  
HUD and local agencies administering HUD-assisted programs must enforce Federal wage and reporting requirements on covered HUD-assisted 
construction and maintenance work.  Enforcement activities include contacting laborers and mechanics and requesting information about their 
employment on covered projects.   

Yes       No    

SUBMIT  PRINT 

HUD - 4730 E   (6/2004)   PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 57

80

ITEM 4.



We are conducting a review of federal labor standards compliance on the project named below.  We are asking 
for certain information regarding your employment on this project.  Sending this questionnaire to you does not 
imply that your employer has violated any law.  

Please respond to all of the questions listed below.  Your responses will be considered confidential and will not be 
released to anyone without your permission.  Your answers should refer only to the time during which you worked on this 
project.  Please return the completed form as soon as possible, using the envelope provided, which needs no postage.  

If you have any questions, please call: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Office of Labor Relations  
FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS QUESTIONNAIRE 

HUD FORM 4730 
OMB Approval Number 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018) 

58

81

ITEM 4.



17. Identify other employees (name, address, phone) who worked with you and who could confirm the type of work you
performed 

18. Identify employees (name, address, phone) you supervised

I affirm that the information provided herein is accurate to the best of my knowledge. 
Employee Name (Please print clearly) Home Phone Number (including area code) 

Current address (Include apartment number, if any) (Street/City/State/Zip 
Code)   

Alternate Phone Number(s) (including area 
code)  

Permanent/Alternate Address (if current address is temporary) Email address 

Signature Date 

Disclosure Authorization 

I authorize the HUD representative to disclose my name and the information I have submitted to the extent necessary to 
enforce my rights under the Acts administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

Signature: Date: 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for 
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining data needed, and completing and reviewing the 
collection of information. The information is considered sensitive and will not be released without your approval.  Provision of this is 
voluntary. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently 
valid Office of Management and Budget (OMB) control number.  

HUD and local agencies administering HUD-assisted programs must enforce Federal wage and reporting requirements on covered 
HUD-assisted construction and maintenance work.  Enforcement activities include contacting laborers and mechanics and requesting 
information about their employment on covered projects.   

HUD-4730 (06/2004) PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Office of Labor Relations  
FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS QUESTIONNAIRE 

HUD FORM 4730 
OMB Approval Number 2501-0018 

(Exp. 09/30/2018) 

59

82

ITEM 4.



DEPARTAMENTO DE VIVIENDA Y DESARROLLO URBANO DE LOS EE.UU. 
Oficina de Relaciones Laborales 

CUESTIONARIO DE ESTÁNDARES FEDERALES DE TRABAJO 

FORMULARIO 
HUD 4730SP 

Número de Aprobación 
OMB 2501-0018 
Exp. 11/30/2016 

Estamos llevando a cabo una revisión del cumplimiento con los estándares federales de trabajo en el proyecto 
mencionado a continuación. Estamos solicitando cierta información concerniente a su empleo en este proyecto. 
El envío de este cuestionario no implica que su empleador haya violado alguna ley. 

Por favor responda a todas las preguntas mencionadas abajo. Sus respuestas se considerarán confidenciales y 
no se revelarán a nadie sin su permiso. Sus respuestas se deben referir únicamente al tiempo durante el cuál 
usted trabajó en este proyecto. Por favor devuelva el formulario debidamente llenado lo más pronto posible, 
usando el sobre proporcionado con franqueo pagado. 

Si tiene preguntas, por favor llame: 
Empleador Nombre del proyecto, número y ubicación 

1. Su nombre 2. El título de su trabajo

3. ¿Cuándo trabajó en este proyecto?

Desde: Hasta: 

4. ¿Dónde trabajó usted (lugar del trabajo, taller, etc.)?

5. ¿Qué tareas desempeñó en este proyecto?

6. ¿Qué herramientas usó (si usó alguna) para desempeñar sus tareas en el proyecto?

7. ¿Cómo se le pagó? (salario por hora, sueldo, trabajo
a destajo, etc.) 

8. Si su salario era en base a trabajo a destajo, ¿cómo se
determinó su pago (esto es, por tabla, por unidad, etc.)? 

9. ¿Cuál era su salario por hora en
este proyecto? 
$ 

10a. Recibió usted beneficios 
adicionales? 

Sí No 

10b. Si la respuesta es sí, ¿Cuáles 
beneficios adicionales recibió? 
Vacaciones 
Seguro médico 
Jubilación 
Otra Especifique 

11. En promedio,
¿cuántas horas 
trabajó usted 
cada semana? 

12. ¿Trabajó
usted más de 40 
horas en una sola 
semana? 

Sí No 

13. Si usted trabajó más de 40
horas por semana, ¿recibió pago por 
horas extra (por lo menos 1½ veces 
su tarifa de pago regular)? 

Sí No 

14. Si usted no recibió pago de sobre
tiempo por las horas extra de trabajo, 
identifique el número de semanas que 
trabajó horas extra y/o las horas extra 

15. Adjunte copias de los talones de
cheques o planillas de sus horas y 
del pago recibido 

MARQUE SI ESTÁN INCLUIDOS 

16. Incluya cualquier otro comentario o declaración en una hoja separada

MARQUE SI ESTÁN INCLUIDOS 
HUD-4730 SPANISH (06/2004) PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 

60

83

ITEM 4.



DEPARTAMENTO DE VIVIENDA Y DESARROLLO URBANO DE LOS EE.UU. 
Oficina de Relaciones Laborales 

CUESTIONARIO DE ESTÁNDARES FEDERALES DE TRABAJO 

FORMULARIO 
HUD 4730SP 

Número de Aprobación 
OMB 2501-0018 
Exp. 11/30/2016 

17. Identifique a otros empleados (nombre, dirección, teléfono) que trabajaron con usted y que podrían confirmar el trabajo
que usted desempeñó 

18. Identifique a los empleados (nombre, dirección, teléfono) que usted supervisó

Afirmo que la información proporcionada aquí es exacta a mi mejor conocimiento. 
Nombre del empleado (Por favor escriba claramente 
en letra de molde) 

Número de teléfono de su domicilio (incluya el código de 
área) 

Dirección actual (Incluya el número de apartamento, 
si se aplica (Calle/Ciudad/Estado/Código Postal) 

Número(s) de teléfono alternativos(s) (incluya el código 
de área) 

Dirección permanente/alternativa (si la dirección 
actual es temporal) 

Dirección de correo electrónico 

Firma Fecha 

Autorización de Revelación 

Autorizo al representante de HUD revelar mi nombre y la información que he presentado, en la medida necesaria 
para hacer valer mis derechos bajo las Leyes administradas por el Departamento de Vivienda y Desarrollo 
Urbano de los EE.UU. 

Firma: Fecha: 

La responsabilidad de informar al público para esta recopilación de información se estima a un promedio de 30 minutos por respuesta, 
incluyendo el tiempo para revisar las instrucciones, buscar las fuentes de datos existentes, recopilar y mantener los datos necesarios, así 
como completar y revisar la información recopilada. La información se considera confidencial y no se revelará sin su aprobación. El 
proporcionarla es voluntario. Esta agencia no puede recopilar información y usted no está obligado a llenar este formulario, a menos que 
se muestre un número de control actual válido de la Oficina de Administración y Presupuesto (OMB). 

HUD y las agencias locales que administran los programas asistidos por HUD deben hacer cumplir los requisitos federales de información 
y salario en los trabajos de construcción y mantenimiento cubiertos, asistidos por HUD. Las actividades de cumplimiento incluyen contratar 
obreros y mecánicos y solicitar información sobre sus empleos en proyectos cubiertos. 

HUD-4730 SPANISH (06/2004) PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE 

61

84

ITEM 4.



Name of complainant Social Security Number 

Current address of complainant (Street/City/State/Zip Code) Permanent address, if different from current address 

Telephone (including area code)  (Home/Cell/Other) E-Mail address 

Project name, location and contract/project number Prime contractor company name 

Employer (company) name Employer:  name of owner/responsible party  

Employer address Employer:  contact information (Telephone/Cell/Other)  

Check one: Current 
employee 
Former 

employee  
 Other (specify) 

Period employed on the project 

From:  To: 

Occupation/job title: 

Duties performed (be specific) 

Tools used and/or equipment operated 

Hours usually worked on the project 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

Usual start and stop times Start work time: End work time: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Office of Labor Relations 
FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS COMPLAINT INTAKE FORM 

HUD FORM 
4731 

OMB Approval No. 2501-0018 
(Exp.  08/31/2010)

Wage Rate:    $  per Hour Day Week Piece Other (specify):  

62

85

ITEM 4.



Were meal breaks taken? Did the employer keep time If yes, how long were the breaks?  records? 

_____________________________  

If fringe benefits were paid, check all that apply: 

 Cash in lieu of fringe benefits 

 Health insurance  
Identify other fringe benefits paid 

Names of others affected by the alleged violation(s) 

Names of others who can verify/attest to the complainant’s allegations 

Complaint taken by:  
Name (print clearly) Phone number (including area code) and E-mail address 

Title Agency, office 

Signature Date 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, 
searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. The information is 
considered sensitive and will not be released without your approval.  Provision of this information is voluntary. This agency may not collect this 
information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid Office of Management and Budget (OMB) control 
number.  HUD and local agencies administering HUD-assisted programs must enforce Federal wage and reporting requirements on covered HUD-
assisted construction and maintenance work.  Enforcement activities include collecting information from laborers and mechanics and other interested 
parties regarding information about their employment on covered projects.  

PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE  form HUD-4731 (6/2004)  

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Office of Labor Relations 
FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS COMPLAINT INTAKE FORM 

HUD FORM 
4731 

OMB Approval No. 2501-0018 
(Exp.  08/31/2010)

Name of complainant Social Security Number 

Yes  No Yes  No 

Paid Overtime (time and ½) after 40 hours? Did the complainant keep time 
records?   

Paid for all hours worked?  Does complainant have other  
personal records (pay stubs, log  
books, etc.) he/she can provide?  

Was/is the complainant an Apprentice? Were fringe benefits paid?  

  Continuation sheets attached 
 Complainant’s personal interview attached

  Life insurance     Pension   

 Dental insurance  Holiday/Sick/Vacation 

63

86

ITEM 4.



INTENT TO COMPLY WITH SECTION 3 REQUIREMENTS 
(To be provided with procurement documents and returned with all submitted bids) 

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 [12 U.S.C. 1701u and 24 CFR Part 135] is HUD’s 
legislative directive for providing preference to low-income residents of the local community (regardless of race or 
gender), and the businesses that substantially employ these persons, for new employment, training and contracting 
opportunities resulting from HUD-funded projects. The regulations seek to ensure that low- and very low- income 
persons, and the businesses that employ these individuals, are notified about the expenditure of HUD funds in their 
community and encouraged to seek opportunities, if created. 

A Section 3 resident is defined as a public housing resident or someone with a household income that is less than 
80% of the area median income. 

A Section 3 business is defined as a business that is: 

51% owned by Section 3 residents 

Whose permanent, full-time staff is comprised of at least 30% Section 3 residents** 

Has committed 25% of the dollar amount of its subcontracts to Section 3 businesses 

Note: If your business meets the definition of a Section 3 business, you may register as a Section 3 Business through 
HUD’s website here: https://portalapps.hud.gov/Sec3BusReg/BRegistry/RegisterBusiness 
Businesses who self-certify that they meet one of the regulatory definitions of a Section 3 business will be included 
in a searchable online database. The database can be used by agencies that receive HUD funds, developers, 
contractors, and others to facilitate the award of covered construction and non-construction contracts to Section 3 
businesses. 

Please complete the following: 
1. If awarded a contract for this CDBG funded project, do you anticipate hiring new employees to

complete the project? (Hiring would be specific to this project) 

Yes No   If yes, please estimate the number of employees to be hired: 

2. Is your business a Section 3 Business? Yes No 

3. Is the bidder willing to consider hiring Section 3 residents for future employment opportunities that are
a direct result of this CDBG funded project?

Yes No 

4. Is the bidder willing to consider subcontracting with Section 3 Businesses for this project?

Yes No 

64

87

ITEM 4.



I understand that this contracting opportunity is subject to HUD Section 3 requirements (24 CFR Part 135). I have 
read and understand the Section 3 requirements as generally described above and presented in the Section 3 
contract language included in the procurement documents for this project. If awarded a contract, the business 
commits to following Section 3 requirements, as they apply to this project. If awarded a contract for this project, 
the business agrees to provide reports to (insert City/County) on Section 3 efforts and accomplishments. 

Name of Contractor/Subcontractor Address 

Print Name Title 

Signature Date 

65

88

ITEM 4.



Sample Format for Section 3 Employee Interviews 

Date: 

Dear Employee: 

Please provide the information requested on this form that we can verify to the Iowa  
Economic Development Authority that your employment here is achieving the goals of 
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968.  This information will be 
placed in your confidential personnel file and will be available only to a limited number 
of authorized persons.  For assistance or further information, please see 
______________________________.  Thank you.  
(Company Official) 

 Sincerely, ________________________________ 

(Company Official)  

NOTE:  Median Income Limits Table is on the reverse side of this form. (use 
limits from IEDA website)   

Step 1:  Are you a resident of public housing?  

_________Yes  ________ No 

*If the answer to Step 1 is “Yes,” you have completed the form. No further information is
needed. 

*If the answer to Step 1 is “No,” please refer to Steps 2 and 3.

Step 2:  On the Median Income Limits Table, find the county in which you live and the 
size of your family (count yourself and all family members living at home).  
Use this information to arrive at the corresponding income level.    

Step 3:  Answer this question: 
Is your family’s total income above or below the amount listed for your county 
and family size?  (Check one)   

_____ABOVE  _____BELOW 

66

89

ITEM 4.



Section 3 Business Certification 
- To be completed by the business claiming Section 3 business status. 

All contract and subcontracts awarded on Section 3 covered projects must be reported in aggregate on 
the Section 3 Summary Report.  For all businesses reported as being Section 3 businesses, 
documentation of their status must be retained in the project files.  IEDA considers this form adequate 
documentation of Section 3 status.  

HUD contracts awarded to the State of Iowa and/or a recipient (City/County) with more than $200,000 
in HUD funds are “Section 3 covered projects”.  Any contractors, with which they contract for more than 
$100,000 on these projects, are required to report on all contracts they make both with Section 3 
business concerns and with businesses that are not Section 3 business concerns.  

This form is a tool to determine and document the Section 3 business status.  Documentation of the 
status of Section 3 Businesses should be retained in the project files.  

Business being certified: 

Company: ___________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ____________________________________________________________________ 

Project information: 

Project Name: ________________________________________________________________ 

Project Address: ______________________________________________________________ 

Section 3 determination 

1. Is your business owned (51% or more) by individuals whose household incomes are NO
GREATER THAN 80% of median family income OR by individuals that are public housing
residents?

*Please reference https://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/Community/downloads (under recipient income
Requirements and Census Information) to determine if employee is less than 80% of the current area median 
income. 

  Yes  ___       No ___ 

2. Do 30% (or more) of your full time, permanent employees have household incomes that are NO
GREATER THAN 80% of median family income, or within three years of the date of first
employment with the business concern were Section 3 residents?

  Yes ___       No ___ 

3. Will you subcontract more than 25% of this contract with a qualified business that is either 51%
owned by Section 3 residents or 30% or more of its employees are Section 3 residents?

  Yes  ___      No ___ 

67

90

ITEM 4.



If any of the questions above are marked “yes”, the business qualifies as a Section 3 business. 

I certify that the above statements are true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and 
belief.  

Signature: ___________________________________________________________________   

Print Name: _________________________________________________ Date___________ 

68

91

ITEM 4.



The US Department of Housing & Urban Development (“HUD”) requires the recipient to collect 
information on every person hired in connection with Section 3 projects to ensure compliance with 
Federal regulations. 

As part of (enter your community here)’s Section 3 program your firm is required to report the number of employees 
hired in connection with a Section 3 Project who are Section 3 Eligible. Complete this form by entering the names 
and addresses of all new hires and by indicating whether they are Section 3 eligible. A Section 3 resident is: 

1. A public housing resident; OR
2. An individual who lives within the and whose income falls within the guidelines for low 

or very low income. See attached table.

This form must be completed by all subcontractors working on a Section 3 project, defined as a 
contract that exceeds $100,000, even if the subcontractor is not a “Section 3 Business.” 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR EMPLOYERS: 

1. Enter the name and address of every new employee hired in connection with the Section 3 Project on
the following list. (Add additional sheets if necessary).

2. For new employees hired, determine whether each new hire is Section 3 eligible by asking the
employee the following questions upon hiring:

a. Are you a resident of public housing?
YES 
NO 

If the answer is “YES,” please skip questions “b” and “c”. 
If the answer is “NO,” please follow up by asking question “b”. 

b. Are you a resident of
YES 
NO 

If the answer is “NO,” this person is not a Section 3-eligible resident. Therefore, there is not a need to 
ask question “c”. 

c. In the last 12 months, was your household income (meaning the total for everyone in your
family earning income) NOT GREATER THAN the amount listed based on your household
size?

YES 
NO 

If YES, have the employee complete the certification form (Exhibit 1) and attach this to your 
submission. 

69

92

ITEM 4.



3. Indicate whether each new hire is Section 3 eligible by checking the appropriate box next to
their name and address on Section 3 New Hire Report. Indicate “Y” for Yes and “N” for No

4. Indicate the Job Category using the following codes:

• Professionals P 
• Technicians T 
• Office and Clerical OC 
• Sales S 
• Trades T 
• Labor L 
• Service Workers SW 
• Other Other 

5. An authorized representative of the firm must certify the accuracy and completeness of the
information provided by signing this form where indicated.

6. Subcontractors who have direct agreements with regarding a Section 3 covered 
project are responsible for collecting the Section 3 New Hire Report from all applicable
contractors and sub-contractors performing on a Section 3 covered project.

7. If there were NO new hires for the report period, please document by checking the box and
providing an authorized signature for your company.

70

93

ITEM 4.



Project Name:   

Project Address:  

Developer Name (if applicable):   

General Contractor Name:  

Name of Firm Completing This Form: 

This Firm is a (check one):   

 Subcontractor
Contract Amount: $  

 Professional Services Consultant
Contract Amount: $  

Contracts and subcontracts made with vendors to solely provide supplies and/or materials are not subject to 
the HUD Section 3 requirements. However, where such vendors also install such supplies and materials, 
said contracts and subcontracts above $100,000 shall be subject to the HUD Section 3 requirements. 

71

94

ITEM 4.



SECTION 3 
NEW HIRE COMPLIANCE REPORT 

NAME OF NEW 
HIRE ADDRESS 

(include Suite/Apt #) 

Section 3 
Eligible? 

Labor Category 

YES OR NO 
See 

Instructions 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 

If there were NO new hires for the report period, please document by checking the box 
and providing an authorized signature for your company. 

 I certify that there were no new hires during the reporting period
  /  /  to  /  /   
mm / dd / yyyy mm / dd / yyyy 

Name: _ _ _ Date: 
(please print) 

Title: _ 
(please print) 

Signature  ________________________________________________________ 

I affirm that the above statements are true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge 
and belief. 

72

95

ITEM 4.



73

96

ITEM 4.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: October 30, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing for the FY18-19 Community Development Block Grant and 
HOME Programs Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER) 

 
The Community Development Department submits for review and approval the attached FY18-
19 Community Development Block Grant and HOME Program Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report. The report contains the progress made on Community 
Development Block Grant funded activities from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. This 
report was reviewed by the Housing Commission at their October 8, 2019 meeting and 
recommended for approval, subject to the required 15-day public comment period and City 
Council public hearing. Notice was published in both English and Spanish in the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls Courier on October 16th, 2019 inviting public comment.   
 
Please contact me if you have any questions.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, AICP, Community Development Director 
 

97

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 1 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

 

 
 
Public Hearing Draft for Review  
 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
CDBG Entitlement/HOME Programs 
Federal Fiscal Year 2018/City Fiscal Year 2019 
Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 
 
 
COMMENT PERIOD PUBLICATION (15-day public comment period, per Citizen Participation Plan): 
October 16th, 2019 through November 4th, 2019 (Published in English and Spanish) 
Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; October 16th, 2019 
 
 
HOUSING COMMISSION (PUBLIC) MEETING ON: 
October 8th, 2019: Recommendation to Council for approval 
 
 
ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL ON: 
________________, 2019 (After a properly-noticed public hearing was conducted; closed the 15-day 
public comment period) 
Public Hearing Publication: Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier; October 16th, 2019 (Published in English and 
Spanish)  

98

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 2 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Citizen Participation 

Citizen Participation Plan 91.105(d); 91.115(d) 

Comment Period: October 16, 2019-November 4, 2019. (Affidavit of Publication). Notices published in 

English and Spanish, both of which include reasonable accommodation language as well. 

Describe the efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on 

performance reports. 

In addition to a formal 15-day comment period on performance reports and a City Council Public 

Hearing, the Cedar Falls Housing Commission reviews CDBG projects at its monthly meetings and 

recommends their approval or revision to staff.  Status reports pertaining to all major projects are given 

to the Housing Commission on a monthly basis.   The Housing Commission and City Council also review 

the Annual Action Plan, Consolidated Plan, and CAPER each year.  Notice of all meetings are posted 

publicly at City Hall, placed on the city's website, and notices are provided to local media in accordance 

with the Iowa Open Meetings Law and City’s Citizen Participation Plan. Additionally, program-related 

reports are made available for examination, published for public comment if necessary, and posted on 

the city's website. The City maintains a list of contacts that provide translation services to persons with 

limited English proficiency. 

Summary of Comments 

There have been no public comments during the the advertised citizen participation period (to date).  

CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes 

Progress the jurisdiction has made in carrying out its strategic plan and its action plan.  91.520(a)  
This could be an overview that includes major initiatives and highlights that were proposed and 
executed throughout the program year. 
 

The City of Cedar Falls was able to provide assistance and services to low income residents in 

accordance to the Annual Action Plan through designated projects, all of which were consistent with the 

City’s Consolidated Plan. These projects and services include housing rehabilitation, repair and public 

services, between release of funds and the end of the fiscal year (June 30th, 2019) covered by this 

CAPER.  The City contracts with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments, specifically for 

providing assistance with implementing the Entitlement Program as well as for drafting the Cedar Falls 

elements of a new Consolidated Plan (FFY 2019-2023) and FFY 2019 Annual Action Plan.  Concurrent 

with beginning the Consolidated Planning process, the City obtained permission to expend FFY 2018 

funds, through completion of the Tier 1 Environmental Review (ER) and Release of Funds, which was 

accomplished in mid-August 2018.  City and INRCOG staff also continued implementing the housing 

rehabilitation and repair programs, utilizing updated applications, policies, as well as reworking the 

procedures for these services.  Finally, agency awards were monitored, correlating reports completed, 

and contracts closed out for FFY 2018. 

99

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 3 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Overall, these programs were designated to improve the housing stock, prevent homelessness and 

improve areas that meet CDBG national objectives in the community. By focusing on the strategic plan 

priorities outlined in the 2014-2018 Cedar Falls Consolidated Plan, we were able to provide decent 

housing by preserving the affordable housing stock, providing a suitable living environment, 

and expanding service opportunities. In the end, the City of Cedar Falls strives to make progress and 

complete all activities, utilize funding in an efficient manner, and serve those with the greatest need.

100

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 4 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

 
Comparison of the proposed versus actual outcomes for each outcome measure submitted with the consolidated plan and explain, if 
applicable, why progress was not made toward meeting goals and objectives.  91.520(g) 
Categories, priority levels, funding sources and amounts, outcomes/objectives, goal outcome indicators, units of measure, targets, actual 
outcomes/outputs, and percentage completed for each of the grantee’s program year goals. 
 

Goal Category Source: 
Amount 
Con Plan 
Actual 
‘19 

Indicator Unit of 
Measure 

Expected 
– 
Strategic 
Plan 

Actual – 
Strategic 
Plan 

Percent 
Complete 

Expected 
– 
Program 
Year 

Actual – 
Program 
Year 

Percent 
Complete 

College Hill 

and 

Downtown 

Facade 

Improvements 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: $0 

$0 

Facade 

treatment/business 

building 

rehabilitation 

Business 75 15 0 0 0 0.00% 

Consumer 

Credit 

Counseling 

Public 

Services 

CDBG: 

$17,500 

$1,784 

Public service 

activities other than 

Low/Moderate 

Income Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
100 286 0 40 56 140.00% 

Demolition 

and Clearance 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$19,500 

$0 

Buildings Demolished Buildings 5 0 0.00% 2 0 0.00% 

Emergency 

Shelter: 

Homeless 

Prevention 

Salvation Army 

Homeless 

CDBG: 

$18,725 

$8,500 

Homeless Person 

Overnight Shelter 

Persons 

Assisted 
250 82 0.00% 20 25 125.00% 

101

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 5 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Public 

Facilities: 

Handicapped 

Access 

Improvements 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 CDBG: 

$0 $0 

Public Facility or 

Infrastructure 

Activities for 

Low/Moderate 

Income Housing 

Benefit 

Households 

Assisted 
5 1 

         

0.00% 
 0  0  0.00% 

Public 

Improvements: 

Sidewalks 

Non-

Homeless 

Special Needs 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: $0 

$0 

Public service 

activities other than 

Low/Moderate 

Income Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
40 0  0.00% 0 0  0.00% 

Public 

Services: Boys 

and Girls Club 

(North Cedar) 

Non-

Homeless 

Special Needs 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

CDBG: 

$24,175 

$0 

Other 
Persons 

Assisted 
500 0 0 0 0 0.00% 

Public 

Services: 

Family and 

Children's 

Council 

Non-

Homeless 

Special Needs 

Public 

Services 

CDBG: 

$17,550 

$6,700 

Public service 

activities other than 

Low/Moderate 

Income Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
200 145 72.50% 35 65 186.00% 

Public 

Services: 

Human Rights 

Educational 

Outreach 

Public 

Services 

CDBG: 

$14,000 

$0 

 

Public service 

activities other than 

Low/Moderate 

Income Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
25 0 

         

0.00% 
 0  0  0.00% 

102

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 6 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Public 

Services: 

Northeast 

Iowa Food 

Bank 

Public 

Services 

CDBG: 

$15,600 

$8,500 

Public service 

activities other than 

Low/Moderate 

Income Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
5,000 22,520 450.40% 3,000 7,308 243.00% 

Public 

Services: 

Pathways 

Behavioral 

Services 

Non-

Homeless 

Special Needs 

Public 

Services 

CDBG: 

$16,375 

$6,500 

Public service 

activities other than 

Low/Moderate 

Income Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
75 52 69.33% 10 22 220.00% 

Public 

Services: 

Visiting Nurses 

Association 

Non-

Homeless 

Special Needs 

Public 

Services 

CDBG: 

$15,600 

$4,500 

Public service 

activities other than 

Low/Moderate 

Income Housing 

Benefit 

Persons 

Assisted 
200 90 45.00% 25 64 256.00% 

Single Family 

Rehabilitation-

Repair Cedar 

Falls CDBG 

Affordable 

Housing 

CDBG: 

$800,000 

$85,816 

Homeowner Housing 

Rehabilitated 

Household 

Housing 

Unit 

100 46 46.00% 20 9 50.00% 

Table 1 - Accomplishments – Program Year & Strategic Plan to Date 
 

103

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 7 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Assess how the jurisdiction’s use of funds, particularly CDBG, addresses the priorities and specific 

objectives identified in the plan, giving special attention to the highest priority activities identified. 

1. Provide decent affordable and sustainable housing by preserving the housing stock. 

The City of Cedar Falls utilizes several activities to support this priority. These activities include our 

Housing Rehabilitation and Repair Programs and administration, as well as support of the nonprofit 

agency Consumer Credit Counseling Services. As noted above, the City completed five rehabilitation and 

four repair work projects on homes at eight different addresses in the community during FFY 2018. In 

complement, the Consumer Credit Counselor office provided financial counseling to 56 people from the 

City of Cedar Falls. 

2. Provide suitable safe living environment integrating low-mod residents. 

During prior years, the City of Cedar Falls utilized five activities to assist with the implementation of this 

objective. These activities include demolition and clearance of vacant and dilapidated 

structures;  Handicap Access Improvements, Sidewalk Reconstruction Program, Park Equipment 

Rehabilitation and Neighborhood Facilities. However, none of these activities were funded during FFY 

2018, because of changes to the Consolidated Plan and City direction.  Nevertheless, during this past 

year, there were nine rehabilitation and repair projects completed toward this objective as the City 

transitioned its focus under the CDBG program, as well as addressed project eligibility challenges.  All of 

the rehabilitation and repair projects benefited low-to-moderate income households. 

3. Expand economic opportunities through self-supporting wages, home ownership, and empowering 

low-mod income persons to achieve self-sufficiency. 

The City of Cedar Falls funded six service agencies aimed at meeting the objective of providing and 

maintaining support services that help City residents remain independent, while expanding economic 

opportunities and empowering low-and-moderate income households and individuals.  All six agencies 

are Limited Clientele low-to-moderate income providers.  These agencies provided an array of services, 

including: parenting- family education for low-moderate income families with children, drug and alcohol 

dependency treatment, financial management and education, home healthcare, food distribution, and 

emergency shelter to the homeless among many other services. Each of the selected six service agencies 

were expected to serve a particular number of Cedar Falls residents with the use of CDBG funds. During 

this past year, all six agencies exceeded their expected goals with regard to the number of Cedar Falls 

residents or households served and counseling appointments completed.  

 

104

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 8 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-10 - Racial and Ethnic composition of families assisted 

Describe the families assisted (including the racial and ethnic status of families assisted). 91.520(a)  

CDBG Persons Households 

White 6,435 2,812 

Black or African American 611 265 

Asian 56 26 

American Indian or American Native 0 0 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 0 0 

Other/Multi-Race 396 167 

Total 7,498 3,270 

Hispanic 280 2 

Not Hispanic 7,218 3,268 

 
Table 2 – Table of assistance to racial and ethnic populations by source of funds  

 

Narrative 

Of the persons that received assistance and services in FFY 2018, 6,435 or 85.80 percent were White and 

611 or 8.15 percent Black or African American. Persons of Asian descent comprised 56 persons or 0.75 

percent, while 396 persons, or 5.2 percent, identify as Other or Multi-Racial categories.  Of the served 

population, only 280 were reported to be of Hispanic ethnicity. According to Census statistics, these 

figures are for the most part consistent with the overall population percentages, which consists of 93.40 

percent White, 2.10 percent Black or African American and 3.73 percent of the population being 

Hispanic. Cedar Falls does not have racially/ethnically concentrated areas.   

 

105

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 9 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a) 

Identify the resources made available 

Source of Funds Source Resources Made 
Available 

Amount Expended 
During Program Year 

CDBG Public-Federal $594,588 $229,367 

HOME Public-Federal $41,901  $0 

HOPWA Public-Federal $0  $0  

ESG Public-Federal $0  $0  

Other Other $0  $0  

Table 3 - Resources Made Available 
 
Narrative 

The two primary federal funding resources used by the City of Cedar Falls are the Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) and the HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) Programs, through a 

consortium with the City of Waterloo. The primary objective of the CDBG Program is to provide decent 

housing, a suitable living environment and economic opportunities for persons of low-and-moderate 

income levels. The HOME funds are primarily used for the development and rehabilitation of affordable 

ownership housing for low-and-moderate income households. During Program Year 2018, the City of 

Cedar Falls had $594,588 in CDBG funds available for rehabilitation and repair projects and an annual 

amount of $41,901 in HOME funds for serving the residents of the City.  

 
Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments 

Target Area Planned Percentage of 
Allocation 

Actual Percentage of 
Allocation 

Narrative Description 

City of Cedar Falls 100% 100% See Text Above 

Table 4 – Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments 
 

Narrative 

Target Area: Cedar Falls (Serving Cedar Falls residents)                              
Planned Percentage of Allocation: 100%                                   
Actual Percentage of Allocation: 100% 

The CDBG funds were used in the City of Cedar Falls as designated. In addition to agency awards, the 

City expended funds for housing rehabilitation and repair programs.  Currently, the City has 

reestablished significant client lists for both of these endeavors and is working to implement projects 

throughout the community. 

106

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 10 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Leveraging 

Explain how federal funds  leveraged additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a 
description of how matching requirements were satisfied, as well as how any publicly owned land or 
property located within the jurisdiction that were used to address the needs identified in the plan. 

The City of Cedar Falls encourages applicants and sub-recipients to obtain other public and private 

resources that address needs identified in the Consolidated Plan.  In program year 2018, the City 

expended $229,367 in CDBG funds by completing five rehabilitation projects, four repair projects, and 

financially assisted six different agencies serving low-to-moderate income persons.  After reviewing 

reports provided by these agencies, it has determined that each has incurred expenses far in excess of 

their awards in order to offer services to Cedar Falls residents.  The table below suggests that for each 

CDBG dollar awarded, agencies matched those funds with approximately $1.52 from other sources. 

 Agency Award Total Expended Leveraged/Match 

Consumer Credit Counseling $2,500 $1,784.01 $0.00 

Family and Children’s Council $6,700 $11,688.93 $4,988.93 

Cedar Valley Food Bank/Pantry $8,500 $14,304.73 $5,804.73 

Pathways Behavioral $6,500 $11,182.70 $4,682.70 

Salvation Army $8,500 $8,924.31 $424.31 

Visiting Nurses Association $4,500 $8,674.00 $4,174.00 

Total $37,200 $56,558.67 $20,074.67 

 
 
Publicly-owned land or property were not used to address community needs during this past year.

107

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 11 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b) 

Evaluation of the jurisdiction's progress in providing affordable housing, including the number and 
types of families served, the number of extremely low-income, low-income, moderate-income, and 
middle-income persons served. 
 

 One-Year Goal Actual 

Number of Homeless households to be 

provided affordable housing units 20 25 

Number of Non-Homeless households to be 

provided affordable housing units 20 9 

Number of Special-Needs households to be 

provided affordable housing units 45 0 

Total 85 34 

Table 5 – Number of Households 
 

 One-Year Goal Actual 

Number of households supported through 

Rental Assistance 0 0 

Number of households supported through 

The Production of New Units 0 0 

Number of households supported through 

Rehab of Existing Units 20 9 

Number of households supported through 

Acquisition of Existing Units 2 0 

Total 22 9 

Table 6 – Number of Households Supported 
 

Discuss the difference between goals and outcomes and problems encountered in meeting these 
goals. 

In terms of addressing homelessness, or reducing the threat of homelessness, the City of Cedar Falls 

funded six agencies, as stated previously.  As is evident, the agencies provided services beyond the goals 

set by the City during FFY 2018 with one exception, those serving Special Needs. 

With regard to household services, the City focused on Housing Rehabilitation and Repair Programs. 

During the past year, the City did not meet them because of the workload associated with processing 

the projected number of applications and project management challenges.  The other impediment to 

accomplishing the target involved addressing the need to update the City’s Administrative Plan, policies, 

and procedures for rehab projects.  Doing so involved a significant amount of time and effort, the 

benefits of which will be realized in future years.  With that said, the City redoubled its efforts to 

108

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 12 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

kickstart the Housing Rehab and Repair programs, as is evidenced by the fact the City’s current Rehab 

list includes 32 properties and the Repair list includes 12 properties. 

Discuss how these outcomes will impact future annual action plans. 

A barrier to affordable housing for low-income residents in Cedar Falls has historically been the price of 

homes and land.  Simply stated, Cedar Falls property has a higher value than surrounding 

cities.  Accordingly, low-income residents are less able to find affordable housing within the 

community.  During future annual action plans, we will continue to work to utilize other funding sources, 

such as HOME and the City of Waterloo, as well as work with agencies, including Habitat for Humanity to 

assist in their efforts to supply affordable homes to low income Cedar Falls residents through the use of 

HOME and CDBG funds.   

Further, the City has identified a number of barriers to affordable housing in its updated Consolidated 

Plan and Analysis of Fair Housing Impediments, both of which were completed in 2019. 

Include the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income persons served by 
each activity where information on income by family size is required to determine the eligibility of the 
activity. 

Number of Persons Served CDBG Actual HOME Actual 

Extremely Low-Income 3,419 0 

Renter  0 

Owner  0 

Very Low-income 2,218 0 

Renter  0 

Owner  0 

Low Income 1,861 0 

Renter  0 

Owner  0 

Total 7,498 0 

Middle Income Persons Served 0 0 

Homeless Persons Served 25 0 

Table 7 – Number of Persons Served 
 

Narrative Information 

In addition to funding six service agencies, five rehabilitation and four repair projects were completed.  

During the past year, the City of Cedar Falls has reestablished, rewritten, and updated policies, 

procedures, and guidelines for rehabilitating property.  The City continues to contract with INRCOG to 

manage their programs and applicant lists for the programs.  As previously stated, the City and INRCOG 

are working to expend the current year’s funding, along with unspent prior years’ funding, over the 

course of the next few fiscal years.  Because of the delays related to implementing the rehabilitation and 

109

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 13 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

repair programs, together with the amount of unspent funds from prior years, the City was unable to 

expend all available funds or complete the number of units anticipated when the Action Plan was being 

formulated.   

With that said, Public Service Agency awards accounted for most of the actual number of people served 
by the program during 2018. As shown in Table 7, the agencies served 3,418 extremely low-income 
persons, 2,210 very low-income persons and 1,857 low-income persons.  All of the persons served by 
the agencies are considered Limited Income Clientele and thus presumed to be considered Low-and-
Moderate Income Households.   

In addition, the rehabilitation and repair programs served one extremely low income person, eight very 
low income persons, and four low income persons, for a total of 13 persons during 2018. 

Fostering Affordable Housing (91.520(a)) 

Regarding underserved needs, the community is building relationships with agencies, after having 
completed its 2019-2023 Consolidated Action Plan public participation process.  Input forums were held 
with over three dozen public, private and non-governmental agencies, the purpose of which was to 
extract information regarding each agency’s services, their future needs, and gaps in service in the City.  
Generally, affordable housing was a concern for participants, as the cost of housing is a challenge for 
low-and-moderate income households.  As a result of these discussions, the City has a better 
understanding of each agency, their clients, and what they may need from the City, specifically those 
that relate to affordable housing.  To that end, the City intends to maintain the relationships and 
working partnerships with the various agencies in an attempt to serve its residents as well as keep the 
agencies informed. 

The City intends to continue supporting rehabilitation and repairs of existing housing stock using the 
CDBG and HOME programs.  To that end, lead-based paint will continue to be addressed in assisted low-
and-moderate income housing in the community, as part of the inspection and abatement efforts.  As 
for any structural or organizational issues, the City is committed to addressing and resolving an 
impediments associated with either funding program, including those that may arise with either of the 
public partnering entities, the City of Waterloo or the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments 
(INRCOG).  The City and INRCOG meet regularly to discuss topics and update each other regarding the 
progress of the program, as well to review detailed policy needs or issues.    

Worst Case Needs 

In addressing the “worst case” needs, the City of Cedar Falls attempts to assist those persons in several 
ways.  First, the CDBG program is used to rehabilitate and repair single-family owner-occupied units in 
the community, as well as provides awards to agencies assisting qualifying households (i.e. homeless, 
involuntarily displaced, and those that are in danger of becoming homeless).   

Second, the City manages a Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8) Program that offers rent assistance to 
approved households where rent amounts may exceed 50 percent of the household’s income.  
Currently, the City maintains a goal of supporting 326 households under the HCV Program.  With that 
said, the City is providing rent assistance for 215 households.  The primary reason the City is serving less 
than their goal, is due to higher rent rates in the community, which means the City’s allocation is not 

110

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 14 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

stretching to meet 326 Cedar Falls households.  With that said, and because the allocation amounts may 
not increase enough to serve this many households, the City may wish to reset their goal regarding the 
number of households they hope to serve. 

 

 

111

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 15 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c) 

Evaluate the jurisdiction’s progress in meeting its specific objectives for reducing and ending 

homelessness through: 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual 

needs 

Needs of the homeless are identified through staff participation in the Black Hawk County Local 

Homeless Coordinating Board.  This advocacy group shares information regarding homeless needs and 

services.  The Board serves as a large partnership for service providers, policy makers, and 

administrators for addressing housing and homeless services in the area.  In addition, the agencies that 

the city chooses to fund with CDBG dollars provide services directly to persons that may be homeless or 

in danger of being homeless, on behalf of the City.  Finally, the City of Cedar Falls is always open to 

developing new partnerships and strategies designed to address homelessness.     

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

The City of Cedar Falls uses CDBG funds to address homelessness through funding to the Salvation Army 

Woman's Shelter, as well as five other agencies that indirectly affect homelessness in a positive fashion. 

The Shelter used the funds provided during this past year to finance rehabilitation and repair work to 

the shelter itself. The shelter also provides services to assist the women in finding employment and 

permanent housing. During the program year the Salvation Army Woman's Shelter assisted 25 persons 

from the Cedar Falls. 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-

income individuals and families and those who are:  likely to become homeless after being discharged 

from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health 

facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions);  and,  

receiving assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 

employment, education, or youth needs 

As done this year, the City intends to continue coordinating with agencies that can help the community 
prevent homelessness, specifically for persons being discharged from public institutions, health care 
facilities, corrections programs, mental health facilities, foster care, or youth programs.   
 
To that end, as well as address other systems of care, the City of Cedar Falls provided awards to six 
agencies that offer these services to residents.  By doing so, the cost of these services is paid by the City, 
as opposed to residents, which in turn, helps stretch the budgets of served persons and prevent 
homeless.  Furthermore, these paid services assist those households that may spend 50 percent or more 
of their budget on housing expenses, which may threaten the housing status or the immediate and/or 
basic needs of the assisted household.  As an aside, funded agencies are classified as serving LMI Limited 
Clientele populations. 
 
CDBG funds are used to fund the Visiting Nurses Association, which provides in-home healthcare to low 

112

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 16 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

income elderly and disabled residents. These services allow residents with medical needs to remain in 
their homes even when assisted living in required. Funds are also provided to The Family and Children's 
Council which provides counseling services to families and youth. The FCC has a Parent Connection 
Program that provides parent education, social support and access to community resources through 
trained staff.  In addition, Pathways Behavioral Services is funded in order to offer substance abuse 
treatment for persons in need, and the Northeast Iowa Food Bank/Food Pantry offers food for 
households in need of nutrition using their CDBG funding.  Finally, the City funded Consumer Credit 
Counseling, which offered financial literacy and household budgeting courses and assistance, as well as 
financial management services, to residents. 
 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 

children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to permanent 

housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that individuals and families 

experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals and families to affordable 

housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were recently homeless from becoming 

homeless again 

The final agency that the City funds is the Salvation Army, which offers shelter for persons in need, most 
notably those persons that may be homeless.  Specifically, CDBG funds are used for Salvation Army 
shelter maintenance and upkeep, which also provides case management and supportive services to 
assist homeless persons make the transition to permanent, stable housing.  As previously noted, the City 
of Cedar Falls has a sub-recipient agreement with Consumer Credit Counseling Services to provide 
budget and credit counseling, foreclosure prevention counseling, and home ownership counseling to 
low-and-moderate income Cedar Falls residents in order to prevent homelessness.  

  

 

113

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 17 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j) 

Actions taken to address the needs of public housing 

The City of Cedar Falls does not have a public housing program, nor does it operate or manage public 

housing property.  The Low Rent Housing Agency of Cedar Falls, administered by the City of Cedar Falls 

Community Development Department, administers 326 Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8 Program), 

but with higher rent levels in the community, the City’s goal is to provide 240 units.  Currently, 207 

vouchers are being utilized. The Low-Rent Housing Agency of Cedar Falls has been rated as a high 

performer, according to the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP).   

Actions taken to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 

participate in homeownership 

This is not applicable, as the City does not have a public housing program or manage public housing 

properties. 

Actions taken to provide assistance to troubled PHAs 

This is not applicable, as the City does not have a public housing program or manage public housing 

properties. 

114

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 18 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j) 

Actions taken to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to 

affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning ordinances, building 

codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the return on residential 

investment. 91.220 (j); 91.320 (i) 

Currently, the need for quality, affordable housing is outpacing the existence of such units in Cedar Falls.  
Between demand on the units by full-time residents, and that which comes with being a university 
community and its student housing needs, the City has demand for affordable housing. 
 
With that said, there are several different kinds of barriers to the development or creation of affordable 
housing in Cedar Falls, some of which are outside of the City’s ability to control.  First, the housing 
market, for low-income residents in Cedar Falls, is expensive, with home valuation and rent costs being 
relatively high.  Second, housing demand in the community has driven-up construction costs for both 
single-family and multiple-family developments.  For example, significant demand for rental properties, 
some of which is attributed to the University of Northern Iowa student population demand, has 
increased prices dramatically, to the point of making units unaffordable for low-and-moderate income 
households.  Third, market demand has driven the price of land upward in the community, not to 
mention the high costs associated with “greenfield” residential development (that occurs on previously 
undeveloped land), most notably due to infrastructure costs.  
 
Two public policy issues were raised during the recent Consolidated Planning process, parking paving 
requirements for rental properties and the inability of the current zoning ordinance to effectively 
address growth that includes mixing of uses, increased development densities, and market pressures in 
fast-growing areas of the community (i.e. Main Street). Regarding the paving requirement, since 
adoption of the ordinance in February 2015, the City has reviewed the requirement three separate 
times.  The cost impact of this policy has been part of that discussion, particularly a concern about hard-
surfacing gravel driveways of existing single-unit rental homes, whereas, the drive of an existing single-
unit owner-occupied unit may remain gravel.  CDBG funds could be used to assist qualifying properties 
comply with the requirement.   Also, recently, the City began updating its existing zoning ordinance, 
with the idea that it may choose to include both form-based and conventional zoning provisions for 
specific parts of the community.  This approach may promote more dense development, which could 
help affordability, because it is design-based as opposed to being impacted exclusively by conventional 
zoning requirements, which focus on use and bulk requirements.   

By looking at the two issues cited above, the City of Cedar Falls is taking action to address potential 
negative effects of public policy on affordable housing.  Also, the City may wish to explore public-
private-nonprofit partnerships in the development of affordable housing.  Nonprofit developers can 
build mixed income housing and attract additional resources/financing that private developers cannot, 
when it comes to creating new affordable housing.  Nevertheless, the City does recognize the effect that 
their housing market is having on the price of housing, which may affect whether or not people can 
afford to live in the community.   

The land use codes, specifically zoning, building, and other regulatory ordinances that the City has 
adopted are designed and drafted to treat properties and people uniformly and fairly.  With regard to 
taxes, property tax assessment is based upon valuation, as determined by the County Assessor.  
Regarding the levy rate for determining actual property tax amounts, they are set by the City Council as 

115

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 19 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

part of their annual budgeting process.  Said levy rates are set by classification (property use), the 
percentage of which that is actually collected by the City is determined by the State of Iowa.  

The City recognizes the higher cost of housing in their community, which may be attributed to market 
demand, land value, and development cost (primarily infrastructure).  As a result, the City’s participation 
in the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement Program becomes that much more 
important.  The CDBG Entitlement has offered not only physical housing assistance in the way of 
rehabilitation and repair programs, the City offers assistance to residents for homelessness prevention 
services, the cost of which were borne by the Program, thus preventing served persons from having to 
weigh paying for housing-related expenses versus the other services they may need. 

Actions taken to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs.  91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

The City of Cedar Falls is proactive in attending meetings and networking with service agencies to 
identify needs in the community, most notably with the recent Consolidated Plan update the City hosted 
public agency/service provider forums to obtain planning-level information.  Further, the City conducted 
a resident survey of needs and wants, again as part of the Consolidated Plan update, in order to gain 
perspectives and perceptions of the city’s residents.  The City's Code Enforcement officer has relayed 
the addresses of properties that have code violations so the housing staff may offer services to the 
homeowner.  

Information regarding the CDBG program and Rehabilitation assistance have also been marketed in a 
local newsletter called the "Currents". The local newsletter is distributed to Cedar Falls residents and to 
agencies that serve Cedar Falls residents.  The City is also using its website to advertise basic program 
information, application, and the administrative plan associated with the rehabilitation projects. Finally, 
the City is utilizing its website to showcase its long-range plans for the CDBG and HOME programs within 
the community. 

Together, the outreach the community has conducted and programs offered are helping the City 
develop strategies for addressing obstacles for persons in the community.  The City in their new 
Consolidated Plan is attempting to implement several new strategies that are intended to help persons 
overcome service, care, and housing barriers. 

Actions taken to reduce lead-based paint hazards. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments directly, or through its subcontractor, provides 
lead risk assessment and completes lead- based paint clearance testing on the housing rehabilitation 
projects in Cedar Falls.  If abatement work is completed, the entire property/project is also cleaned. At 
least one hour after the final cleaning a certified inspector does a visual examination to ensure there are 
no paint chips, dust, debris, or bare soil. The inspector then takes a dust sample from the window 
troughs, windowsills, and floors. The sampling is then tested in accordance with the HUD guidelines. In 
addition, per unit rehab budgets also include funds for relocation of families whose homes may be 
impacted by lead, as well as for addressing lead hazards such that units can be considered safe. 
 
The City will continue to include lead-based hazard prevention measures in its program, including 
identification, testing, relocation, and remediation actions.  Applicants, as a means of education, are also 
provided the lead paint brochure "Protect Your Family from Lead Paint in Your Home".  This brochure 
explains the dangers of lead in the home.   

116

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 20 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Households receiving assistance through the Housing Choice Voucher program are also advised of lead 
hazards and units built prior to 1978 are assessed for lead hazards. 
 
Actions taken to reduce the number of poverty-level families. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 
 
As indicated in the current and updated Consolidated and Annual Action Plans, the City of Cedar Falls 
works to eliminate poverty through making housing more affordable, preserving the condition and 
availability of existing housing stock, and helping citizens build human, social, financial, physical, and 
natural assets.  This work is completed with the idea that it will address several of the social and 
economic causes of poverty.  Also, the work the contracted services agencies performs on behalf of the 
City helps increase educational and awareness opportunities for community residents, many of whom 
are at or below poverty levels. 
 
Actions taken to develop institutional structure. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 
 
As indicated in the Consolidated Plan, the close working relationship between the Cedar Falls City 
Council, Housing Commission and the Community Development staff helps to overcome any potential 
gaps in institutional structure.  Through this program, the City has had the opportunity to build 
relationships with numerous agencies, organizations, and entities, all of which help the community build 
a network, and in some cases a safety net, of services for its residents.  Furthermore, City of Cedar Falls 
staff work closely with the neighboring City of Waterloo on projects affecting the metropolitan area.  
Finally, the City continues building a relationship with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of 
Governments and their staff with regard to implementing both CDBG and HOME programs in the 
community.   
 
Actions taken to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 

The City of Cedar Falls Housing Commission, which was significantly involved in updated the 

Consolidated Plan during this past year, includes membership from a wide cross-section of the 

community.  Currently, the Commission includes a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher participant, a 

realtor, a lender, a banker, a leader of an affordable housing advocacy group, a retired television and 

radio executive, and a former Public Housing Authority staff member.  This unique composition allows 

for collaboration and communication of potential ideas that address fair housing issues, raise awareness 

of concern, and create working relationships that will help address housing issues. As has been 

documented, the City works closely with service agencies to ensure coordination, fill gaps where 

services are needed, and exchange feedback regarding underserved needs. 

During this past year, the City has had a chance through its Consolidated Plan update process to 

enhance relationships with several agencies, organizations, and service providers.  While the planning 

process used input forums, surveys, and interviews, the City staff and Housing Commission are 

committed to making the joint meeting process a regular occurrence, so as to allow for a forum of 

community needs as well as provide an opportunity to strategize how the impact of the CDBG may have 

maximum impact in the city. 

117

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 21 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Identify actions taken to overcome the effects of any impediments identified in the jurisdiction’s 

analysis of impediments to fair housing choice.  91.520(a) 

The City of Cedar Falls, together with the City of Waterloo, completed an Analysis of Impediments to 

Fair Housing (AFH) in 2014, and updated it in 2019 as part of development of their Consolidated 

Plan.  Said Analysis identified impediments to fair housing in Cedar Falls and the actions suggested to 

address them, as follows: 

Public Sector Impediments: Market Based Need Areas 
 
Suggested AFH Actions: 
 

1. Limited English-Speaking Population. Conduct a four-factor analysis to determine which current 
systems for interpretation and translation are adequately serving the community.  Ending with a 
Language Access Plan. 

2. Focus CDBG funding on the provision of affordable rental units. 
3. Consider a renter-focused CDBG-funded affordable housing project. 
4. Planning departments in Consortium work together to arrange for a workshop for developers 

and landlords to broaden awareness of the concepts of universal design. 
5. Provide incentives for employment training and apprenticeships aimed at residents of racially-

impacted neighborhoods. 
6. Target homeownership counseling to residents of impacted neighborhoods. 

 
AFH Actions Accomplished: 
 
During 2018, the City focused expended program funding on assisting low-and-moderate income 
households and families.  A change that was identified during the Consolidated Plan update suggested 
directing assistance to affordable rental units (Suggested AFH Action #2), and as such, the City has 
programmed funding during the life of the new plan toward this endeavor.  Likewise, the recent 
Consolidated Planning process discussed focusing funding on renter-occupied affordable housing 
projects (Suggested AFH Action #3).  Finally, the City is working to schedule a landlord informational 
forum and educational program relating to the Housing Choice Voucher program (Suggested AFH Action 
#4) in an attempt to encourage landlord participation in the program, as well as dispel any myths or 
misconceptions of the program itself. 
 
Public Sector Impediments: Policy Based Need Areas 
 
Suggested AFH Actions: 
 

1. Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission outreach project.  Determine viability of using CDBG 
funds to support an outreach project. Empower the Commission to enforce fair housing laws 
rather than referring residents to the Iowa Civil Rights Commission 

2. Consortium should continue to engage in regional planning efforts to most efficiently match bus 
lines and stops with jobs, housing, and amenities. 

 
AFH Actions Accomplished: 
 

118

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 22 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

In regard to public policy needs, the City has had preliminary discussions regarding the use of CDBG 
funds to support outreach and strengthening the position of their local Human Rights Commission 
(Suggested AFH Action #1).  Further, during the recent Consolidated Planning process, both cities in the 
consortium (Waterloo and Cedar Falls) had several opportunities to work on enhance and improve 
transit services, most notably addressing route restructuring around land use and employment changes, 
as well as purchasing bus passes for CDBG clients.  The City of Cedar Falls has included allocation of 
CDBG funding in the new plan toward improving transportation services that better serve housing areas, 
employment centers, community education and service providers for residents that may not have 
access to transit services (Suggested AFH Action #2). 
 
Private Sector Impediments: Market Based Need Areas 
 
Suggested AFH Actions: 
  

1. Consortium should consider testing for mortgage discrimination by a qualified entity in order to 
more effectively target education, outreach, referral, and enforcement activities. 

2. Apply for a grant for another round of testing, with particular emphasis on race and disability, 
should be considered by the Consortium. 

3. Legal review of nuisance and rental inspection ordinances to ensure whether enforcement is 
consistent with applicable fair housing laws.     

AFH Actions Accomplished: 

As a result of an everchanging rental market in Cedar Falls, as well as recent Iowa statute amendments 
and attempting to balance land use in the community, the City has spent, and will consider to spend, 
significant staff time addressing the interaction of local rental and nuisance ordinances and their impact 
on the community and applicable federal and state laws.  This includes assessing the consistency of local 
laws and applicable fair housing regulations (Suggested AFH Action #3).  The most recent example of this 
was when the City reviewed and amended local land use regulations in order to comply with changes in 
Iowa law with regard to how families may be defined and the corresponding impact on housing density 
and rental regulations. 

CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230 

Describe the standards and procedures used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance of the 

plan and used to ensure long-term compliance with requirements of the programs involved, including 

minority business outreach and the comprehensive planning requirements 

The City of Cedar Falls used numerous methods of ensuring the projects funded under the CDBG 
Entitlement program comply with federal standards and requirements, including the National Objectives 
for the CDBG Program.  Further, said monitoring will utilize this plan and the Analysis of Fair Housing as 
the foundations and impetus for actions taken and implemented using CDBG funding in the community.  
In short, expenditure of funds is consistent with the goals outlined in both planning documents. 
 
All direct housing rehabilitation and repair projects were conducted according to prescribed HUD 
requirements this past year, including written applications, income verifications, procurement, 
contracting, inspections, and closeout procedures.  The City included minority-owned contracting 

119

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 23 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

businesses in the project bidding outreach processes.  Only low-to-moderate income households were 
assisted under this program.  
 
Any agencies receiving funding were required to compete for funds, develop eligible proposals, provide 
quarterly reports, and be monitored for compliance and effectiveness.  The City of Cedar Falls continued 
working with public service agencies and nonprofit organizations to ensure they are reaching the goal of 
assisting residents with the greatest need, as well as to stave off homelessness in the community. In 
addition, the City worked with code enforcement and other departments to identify potential at-risk 
properties and residents.  
 
Declining resources have been a key impediment to addressing needs. By networking with other 
agencies, we can combine multiple funding sources to provide more services to low-and-moderate 
income residents.  Low-and-moderate income households and persons, limited clientele populations, 
and areas will likely continue to be assisted, as is allowed. 
 
City-directed projects are to be implemented according to CDBG eligibility, monitoring, and reporting 
requirements.  This will include all future neighborhood projects, the scope of which shall be limited to 
low-and-moderate income areas, as defined by the US Census Bureau. 
 
Finally, the Housing Commission and City Council will review and approve this Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER), which summarizes the accomplishments and efforts made 
under the CDBG Entitlement Program, all after conducting the required, appropriate public input 
processes outlined in the City’s Public Participation Plan. 
 
All CDBG funds expended are subject to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development and the 
City’s auditing and monitoring processes.  In addition, planning and administrative work performed by 
INRCOG are subject to its independent auditing and records maintenance processes as well.   
 
Citizen Participation Plan 91.105(d); 91.115(d) 
Describe the efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on 

performance reports. 

Three public meeting opportunities were provided regarding this specific CAPER Report, which is 
consistent with the City’s Citizen Participation Plan, the regular October 8th, 2019 Housing Commission 
Meeting and the October 7th, 2019 and November 4th, 2019 City Council Meetings.  Legal notice for this 
CAPER and the November 4th City Council Public Hearing was advertised consistently with the City’s 
Citizen Participation Plan, including a combined published 15-day comment period and legal public 
hearing notice.  Specifically, the notice was published in the English and Spanish languages, and both 
notices offered reasonable accommodation for persons having a disability. 
 
CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c) 

Specify the nature of, and reasons for, any changes in the jurisdiction’s program objectives and 
indications of how the jurisdiction would change its programs as a result of its experiences. 
 
As a result of monitoring, eligibility concerns, and City reprioritization, the City chose to focus its CDBG 
funding and efforts on agency awards and housing rehabilitation/repair during FFY 2018.  Incidentally, 
the City is considering funding LMI Area benefit programs that offer infrastructure, recreation, 

120

ITEM 6.



 CAPER 24 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

sidewalks, and code enforcement improvements in future years in order to impact larger numbers of 
people and areas in the community. 
 
Does the grantee have an existing Section 108 guarantee.  
 
The City does not have a Section 108 guaranteed loan. 
 
Does this Jurisdiction have any open Brownfields Economic Development Initiative (BEDI) grants? 
 
The City does not have an open BEDI grant. 
 
[BEDI grantees]  Describe accomplishments and program outcomes during the last year. 
 
The City is not a BEDI grantee, and therefore, this query does not apply. 

121

ITEM 6.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 268-5161 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2957 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT AS 35 
MILES PER HOUR ON RIDGEWAY AVENUE FROM HUDSON ROAD EAST 
TO IOWA HIGHWAY 58 IN SECTION 23-300, LAWFUL SPEED LIMITS 
ESTABLISHED, OF DIVISION 5, SPEED, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF 
CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY (1) STRIKING 
SUBSECTION 12(S) THEREOF, AND ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION 12(S) 
IN LIEU THEREOF; AND (2) ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION (10)(W) 
THEREOF; AND (3) ENACTING A NEW SUBSECTION (12)(V) THEREOF. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. Subsection 12(s) , of Section 23-300, Lawful speed limits established, of 

Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, is hereby 
amended by repealing said Subsection in its entirety and enacting in lieu thereof a new 
Subsection 12(s), as follows: 

 
Sec. 23-300. - Lawful speed limits established. 

Unless otherwise provided by this chapter or other city ordinances and appropriately 
posted, the speed limits established in this section shall be the lawful speed, and any speed in 
excess thereof shall be unlawful. 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 

 (12) 45 miles per hour. 45 miles per hour on any of the following streets as indicated: 
 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 
 

s.  Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road west to the western city limits.. 
 

[unchanged provisions omitted] 
 
 

122

ITEM 8.



2 

 

 
Section 2.  Subsection 10, 35 miles per hour, of Section 23-300, Lawful speed limits 

established, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, is hereby amended by adding the following Subsection (w): 

 
w.  Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson Road east to Iowa Highway 58. 

 
 

Section 3.  Subsection 12, 45 miles per hour, of Section 23-300, Lawful speed limits 
established, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, is hereby amended by adding the following Subsection (v): 

 
v.  Ridgeway Avenue, from Iowa Highway 58 east to the eastern city limits. 

 
 
 
 

INTRODUCED:     October 7, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   October 7, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   October 21, 2019   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
 
 

____________________________ 
       James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

123

ITEM 8.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2958 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 
ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION CONSISTING OF A 
175,850 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND PRODUCTION FACILITY 

CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY BROADSTONE BCI IOWA, L.L.C., LOCATED 
AT 2900 CAPITAL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance provided 
a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real estate by certain 
new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with said exemption being 
provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial Property, of Article II, Tax 
Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C., has completed and owns an approximate 
175,850 square foot industrial use warehouse and production facility, located at 2900 Capital 
Way Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 
All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 6 in 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West 
eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, all in 
the East one-half (1/2) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range 
Fourteen West (R14W) in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 16.16 
acres, more or less, 
 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and the Cedar 
Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 21st day of October, 2019, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed since 
the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
  
 

124

ITEM 9.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 

 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance hereby 
grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real estate by new 
construction of an approximate 175,850 square foot industrial use warehouse and production 
facility constructed by Broadstone BCI Iowa, L.L.C., on property owned by Broadstone BCI 
Iowa, L.L.C., located at 2900 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 
All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 6 in 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West 
eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, all in 
the East one-half (1/2) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range 
Fourteen West (R14W) in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 16.16 
acres, more or less, 

to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 
of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the proper and timely filing of an application for exemption 
with the Black Hawk County Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual value 
added which is eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
 
INTRODUCED: 

 
October 21, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION: October 21, 2019 

2ND CONSIDERATION:  

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 
ATTEST:  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   
________________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

125

ITEM 9.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

October 21, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:50 p.m. on October 21, 2019, 
with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom Blanford, Frank 
Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, and Mark Miller.   David Wieland was absent.  
Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Tom Nelson with the Waterloo Courier 
attended, as well as members of the community. 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, Parking 
Updates.  Terra Ray Engineering Technician II, stated the parking study for Downtown has 
been completed and implementation has begun.  She stated the parking ordinance was 
updated in June and additional parking stalls were added.  She stated the hours of 
enforcement were extended in the downtown district and is now monitored 9 a.m. to 8 p.m. 
Monday – Saturday.  Ms. Ray reviewed the new parking pay station which is supported by IPS 
Group and their Park Smarter Mobile App.  She explained the College Hill District 
recommendations will be implemented and the ordinance will be amended.  She stated the 
parking enforcement will be changed to 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. Monday – Friday.  Mayor Brown 
opened it up for discussion.  Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk, stated lot G in the College Hill 
district will become a paid lot only, which should push students to parking on campus rather 
than this lot.    She stated the parking attendants will now monitor each district and perform 
parking counts and utilize mapping to see how the recommendations are working.  Jennifer 
Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations stated we are looking into linking the 
parking payment app to the City’s new mobile app.  Ms. Ray stated new signage and lot 
identification will be posted including rate schedule for each lot.     

The Mayor introduced the second item on the agenda Pavement Management.  Chase 
Schrage Director of Public Works introduced new Engineering staff who will be giving the 
presentation tonight, David Wicke City Engineer and Jon Fitch Principal Engineer.  Mr. 
Schrage stated they continue to review the complete streets guidance as well as the Bike Plan 
when working on the Pavement Management Plan to improve connectivity.  Mr. Wicke stated 
City staff examines and evaluates the pavement throughout the city each year and based on 
this review of surface wear, cracking, joint separation and settlement the roadway.  He 
reviewed the five streets which will be reconstructed with concrete and one roadway which will 
be done with asphalt.  Mr. Schrage answered a question on the reconstruction of 12th Street 
and stated this roadway will continue to be marked with share-the-road markings for bicycle 
traffic.  Mr. Wicke stated the traffic volume and loads are considered when using concrete or 
asphalt in the reconstruction of the roadway.  Mr. Fitch continued the review of the Pavement 
Management Plan and reviewed the nine streets planned for restoration.  He explained the 
restoration could vary from full-overlay, panel replacement or cold in place asphalt.  Rob Green 
motioned to approve the Pavement Management Plan as presented, Daryl Kruse seconded 
the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.    

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. Daryl Kruse moved to 
approve the bills and payroll as presented, Tom Blanford seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:27 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 
126

ITEM 10.



127

ITEM 11.



128

ITEM 11.



129

ITEM 11.



130

ITEM 11.



131

ITEM 11.



132

ITEM 11.



133

ITEM 11.



134

ITEM 11.



135

ITEM 11.



136

ITEM 11.



137

ITEM 11.



138

ITEM 11.



139

ITEM 11.



140

ITEM 11.



141

ITEM 11.



142

ITEM 11.



143

ITEM 11.



144

ITEM 11.



145

ITEM 11.



146

ITEM 11.



147

ITEM 11.



148

ITEM 11.



149

ITEM 11.



150

ITEM 11.



151

ITEM 11.



152

ITEM 11.



153

ITEM 11.



154

ITEM 11.



155

ITEM 11.



156

ITEM 11.



157

ITEM 11.



158

ITEM 11.



159

ITEM 11.



160

ITEM 11.



161

ITEM 11.



162

ITEM 11.



163

ITEM 11.



164

ITEM 11.



165

ITEM 11.



166

ITEM 11.



167

ITEM 11.



168

ITEM 11.



169

ITEM 11.



170

ITEM 11.



171

ITEM 11.



172

ITEM 11.



173

ITEM 11.



174

ITEM 11.



175

ITEM 11.



176

ITEM 11.



177

ITEM 11.



178

ITEM 11.



179

ITEM 11.



180

ITEM 11.



181

ITEM 11.



182

ITEM 11.



183

ITEM 11.



184

ITEM 11.



185

ITEM 11.



186

ITEM 11.



187

ITEM 11.



188

ITEM 11.



189

ITEM 11.



190

ITEM 11.



191

ITEM 11.



192

ITEM 11.



193

ITEM 11.



194

ITEM 11.



195

ITEM 11.



196

ITEM 11.



197

ITEM 11.



198

ITEM 11.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  October 31, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

b) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 

 

199

ITEM 12.



200

ITEM 13.



201

ITEM 13.



202

ITEM 13.



203

ITEM 13.



204

ITEM 13.



205

ITEM 13.



206

ITEM 14.



207

ITEM 14.



208

ITEM 14.



209

ITEM 14.



210

ITEM 14.



211

ITEM 14.



212

ITEM 14.



213

ITEM 14.



214

ITEM 14.



215

ITEM 14.



216

ITEM 14.



217

ITEM 14.



218

ITEM 14.



219

ITEM 14.



220

ITEM 14.



221

ITEM 14.



222

ITEM 14.



223

ITEM 14.



224

ITEM 14.



225

ITEM 14.



226

ITEM 14.



227

ITEM 14.



228

ITEM 14.



229

ITEM 14.



230

ITEM 14.



231

ITEM 14.



232

ITEM 15.



233

ITEM 15.



234

ITEM 15.



235

ITEM 15.



236

ITEM 15.



237

ITEM 15.



238

ITEM 15.



239

ITEM 15.



240

ITEM 15.



241

ITEM 15.



242

ITEM 15.



243

ITEM 15.



244

ITEM 15.



245

ITEM 15.



246

ITEM 15.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council Members  

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: October 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Lobbyist Contract   

 
As you are aware, we have been working with Matt Eide for the past several years for 
lobbyist services for the City.  We determined that due to the length of time, it was 
probably appropriate to solicit requests for proposals from other firms.  In August we 
sent out RFPs to seven firms and we received five proposals back.   An interview team 
of Ron Gaines, Kevin Rogers, Tom Blanford, and myself interviewed all five firms.  After 
much discussion, the interview team is recommending Cope Murphy as our new 
lobbyist firm.   We are recommending this firm based on the fee, their interview 
presentation, the services they are proposing to provide, and the positive 
recommendation we received on them.    
 
We are proposing a three-year contract with Cope Murphy and their proposed fee is 
$18,000/year.  A contract with the firm is attached for your review.   

 
 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact any one of us on the interview 
team.  
 
 
 

247

ITEM 16.



248

ITEM 16.



249

ITEM 16.



250

ITEM 16.



251

ITEM 16.



252

ITEM 16.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council Members  

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations &          

                        Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

 DATE: October 31, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Pilot Program – Level 2 Electric Vehicle (EV) Charger   

 
Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) staff has been working with staff here at the City about 
options for EV chargers.  One of the locations CFU is interested in is a spot in the 
downtown area.  After discussion we thought a good test spot may be a parking space 
on the north side of city hall on the north side of 2nd street.  The charger would be a 
level 2, which means that it would take approximately 6-8 hours for a car to be fully 
charged.   
 
We are looking at CFU and the City partnering on the project by the City supplying the 
parking space and the funds for the cost of the charger, approximately $10,490 and 
CFU will be responsible for the installation, including the transformer, line extensions, 
meter socket, breakers, etc, which they are estimating at $9,500.  After installation, 
CFU is proposing that the City and CFU split the maintenance costs 50/50 but then 
share in the charging revenue 50/50 as well.  CFU and City staff are working on a 
memo of understanding to formalize the arrangement which will be forthcoming.  At this 
point, to keep the project moving along, we are asking for council approval to authorize 
the one parking spot for electric vehicles and to authorize the funds to purchase the 
charger.  Funding will be coming from our capital projects fund.   
 
In regards to logistics about the space and the charger, that is why we are looking at 
this being a pilot program.  At this point, we are not submitting ordinances that 
designate the space or designate the use of the space, we would like to do a test time 
period first to determine how much use the space gets, how much users are willing to 
pay for the electric use, etc.  At this time, we would sign the spot to say for “Actively 
Charging Electric Vehicles Only”.  We would then monitor the spot by giving other 
vehicles warnings (not actual tickets) and we would also monitor it to ensure that the 
electric vehicles parked there are actively charging.  We will be continuing to work with 
CFU to determine charging rates. One of the other things we would like to test is how 
popular it is and whether a 2nd space right next to this one is warranted as well.  The 
charger that will be purchased will have two charging cables, so two spots could be 
used, but at this time we thought starting with one space during this pilot program is the 
best option.  
 
If you have any questions about the project, please feel free to contact Chase Schrage 
or myself.  

253

ITEM 17.



W 2nd St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

St

Cla
y S

t
Exhibit A I

254

ITEM 17.



1 

   CEDAR FALLS POLICE DEPARTMENT 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown, City Council Members 

From:  Jeff Olson, Director of Public Safety Services/Chief of Police 

Date:  October 29, 2019 

Re: Tobacco Enforcement Agreement 

Attached you will find a Tobacco Enforcement Agreement between the City of Cedar 
Falls and the Iowa Alcoholic Beverages Division.  This agreement requires the Police 
Division to conduct one compliance check on all retail businesses that sell tobacco 
between October 1, 2019 and February 15, 2020.  The Division shall conduct a second 
compliance check on any retailer that is found to be non-compliant during the first 
inspection no later than May 15, 2020.  The Iowa Alcoholic Beverages Division will 
reimburse the City seventy-five dollars per compliance check.   

This agreement is similar to those that we have entered into over the past several years 
and I recommend its approval. 

255

ITEM 18.



256

ITEM 18.



257

ITEM 18.



258

ITEM 18.



259

ITEM 18.



260

ITEM 18.



261

ITEM 18.



262

ITEM 18.



263

ITEM 18.



264

ITEM 18.



265

ITEM 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, City Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: October 30, 2019 
Prof 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates, Inc.   
  2019 Engineering Services 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 12 
  Ridgewood and Mandalay Slope Stabilization 
  City Project No. MC-091-3218 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 12 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 
Engineering Services. This supplemental agreement includes the geotechnical 
investigation, report, recommendation and design for the slope stabilization on the north 
side of Ridgewood Drive across from 1513 Cherry Lane and on the north side of 
Mandalay Drive between 1622 and 1710 Mandalay Drive. The agreement includes the 
geotechnical evaluation and design of a preferred stabilization method for each site 
upon Owner approval.  
  
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for the 2019 Engineering Services on December 3, 2018.  Funding for 
the Supplemental Agreement #12 will be provided by the 2020 General Obligation 
Bonds in the amount of $50,000. This project is included in the City of Cedar Falls’ 
Capital Improvements Program. 
 
The Department of Public Works requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 12 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Ridgewood and 
Mandalay Slope Stabilization.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

266

ITEM 19.



� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � �  � � � � � � � 	 � � �� � � � 	 
 � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � 	 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � ! � " � # � $ � " % � & ' � # � ( � � ! � & � "  � ! � " � # �) * # � � + , - . / 0 1 2 / 3 - 1 - 4 5 6 + , - . / 0 1 2 / 3 - . 7
8 9 : ; : < = > ? @ A B C D E E F B G ? H I D A J F K D E L M A D D N D G O P ? E D G O D A D Q F G O B R S O T D U F O S B C U D Q ? A V ? H H E W X B P ?Y U Z X [ \ ] ^ W ? G Q I G S Q D A _ L E E B K F ? O D E W X G K ` Y U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] ^ W B C U D Q ? A c ? d F Q E W X B P ? W Q ? O D Qe D K D N R D A f W g h i j C B A O T D N k G F K F d ? H D G M F G D D A F G M E k d d B A O E D A J F K D E l ? G Qm n [ c [ L I W O T D U Z X [ \ ] ? G Q U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] Q D E F A D O B ? N D G Q O T D d A D J F B k E ? M A D D N D G O O B F G K H k Q DI K B d D B C I D A J F K D E ? G Q U B N d D G E ? O F B G C B A ? Q Q F O F B G ? H F O D N E A D o k F A D Q ? E ? d ? A O B C O T D g h i p [ G M F G D D A F G MI D A J F K D E W\ a m ] n [ c [ V a c [ W F O F E N k O k ? H H S ? M A D D Q O B ? N D G Q O T D B A F M F G ? H @ A B C D E E F B G ? H I D A J F K D E L M A D D N D G O? E C B H H B P E qr s = t u v : u w = : ; x r t : =] T D I K B d D B C I D A J F K D E ? G Q R ? E F E C B A U B N d D G E ? O F B G Q D A F J ? O F B G ? A D ? E C B H H B P E qL ` ] T F E d A B y D K O M D G D A ? H H S F G K H k Q D E M D B O D K T G F K ? H ? G ? H S E F E ? G Q D G M F G D D A F G M Q D E F M G C B A E H B d DE O ? R F H F z ? O F B G C B A O P B H B K ? O F B G E P F O T F G O T D U F O S B C U D Q ? A V ? H H E `i ` ] T D c F Q M D P B B Q e A F J D E H B d D E O ? R F H F z ? O F B G H B K ? O F B G F E M D G D A ? H H S H B K ? O D Q D ? E O B C mc F Q M D P B B Q e A F J D G D ? A O B O T D F G O D A E D K O F B G P F O T U T D A A S Z ? G D ? K A B E E c F Q M D P B B Q e A F J DC A B N d A B d D A O S ? Q Q A D E E i { i f U T D A A S Z ? G D `g ` ] T D | ? G Q ? H ? S e A F J D E H B d D E O ? R F H F z ? O F B G H B K ? O F B G F E M D G D A ? H H S H B K ? O D Q G B A O T ? G QR D O P D D G O T D d A F J ? O D T B N D E H B K ? O D Q ? O i } g g ? G Q i ~ i h | ? G Q ? H ? S e A F J D W F G ? G ? A D ?P T D A D d A D J F B k E E O B A N E D P D A F N d A B J D N D G O E P D A D K B G Q k K O D Q R S O T D U Z X [ \ ] `f ` ] T D U Z X [ \ ] E T ? H H K B B A Q F G ? O D P F O T d A F J ? O D d A B d D A O S C B A E F O D ? K K D E E C B A O T D d k A d B E D EB C M D B O D K T G F K ? H ? G ? H S E F E ? G Q D G M F G D D A F G M Q D E F M G `� ` ] T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] E T ? H H d D A C B A N O T D G D K D E E ? A S E k A J D S E P F O T F G O T D d A B y D K O H F N F O E F G K H k Q F G MH B K ? O F B G ? G Q D H D J ? O F B G B C D � F E O F G M E k A C ? K D C D ? O k A D E ? G Q O B H B K ? O D W P T D A D d B E E F R H D Wk G Q D A M A B k G Q k O F H F O F D E C A B N D � F E O F G M A D K B A Q E ? G Q C F D H Q H B K ? O D E W ? E N ? Q D ? J ? F H ? R H D `] B d B M A ? d T F K ? H E k A J D S P F H H R D d D A C B A N D Q O B F Q D G O F C S O T D d A B y D K O H F N F O E W D � F E O F G M E H B d DK B G Q F O F B G E W ? G Q O B Q D N B G E O A ? O D O P B K A B E E E D K O F B G E B C D ? K T W O T D c F Q M D P B B Q e A F J D ? G Q

267

ITEM 19.



| ? G Q ? H ? S e A F J D E H B d D ? A D ? E k G Q D A K B G E F Q D A ? O F B G ` L Q Q F O F B G ? H H S W k d O B O P B Y g ^ O D N d B A ? A SK B G E O A k K O F B G D ? E D N D G O D � T F R F O E E T ? H H R D d A D d ? A D Q ` L K o k F E F O F B G E D A J F K D E P F H H R D K B N d H D O D QR S O T D U Z X [ \ ] `U ` ] T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] E T ? H H A D O ? F G O T D E D A J F K D E B C M D B O D K T G F K ? H D G M F G D D A F G M E k R K B G E k H O ? G O O Bd D A C B A N E B F H Q A F H H F G M ? G Q d A B J F Q D O T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] P F O T C F D H Q Q ? O ? ? G Q ? A D d B A O ` ] T DU a \ I b Z ] L \ ] � E E k R K B G E k H O ? G O E T ? H H d D A C B A N H ? R B A ? O B A S O D E O F G M B G O T D E ? N d H D E O B D J ? H k ? O DE F O D K B G Q F O F B G E ? G Q Q D J D H B d D G M F G D D A F G M A D K B N N D G Q ? O F B G E C B A O T D d A B y D K O `i ` L O c F Q M D P B B Q e A F J D H B K ? O F B G W M D B O D K T G F K ? H D J ? H k ? O F B G P F H H F G K H k Q D N B R F H F z ? O F B G B C ? H HO D A A ? F G Q A F H H F G M D o k F d N D G O W k O F H F O S H B K ? O D E W Q A F H H F G M ? G Q E ? N d H F G M B C B G D Y i ^ R B A F G M } h �C D D O Q D D d ? O O T D K A D E O B C O T D E H B d D W B G D Y i ^ R B A F G M N F Q P ? S Q B P G O T D E H B d D W ? G Q B G DY i ^ R B A F G M g { � C D D O Q D D d ? O O T D O B D B C O T D E H B d D W ? G Q H ? R B A ? O B A S O D E O F G M P F H H F G K H k Q DE H B d D E O ? R F H F O S ? G ? H S E F E B C O T D d A D E D G O E H B d D K B G Q F O F B G E `g ` L O | ? G Q ? H ? S e A F J D H B K ? O F B G W M D B O D K T G F K ? H D J ? H k ? O F B G P F H H F G K H k Q D N B R F H F z ? O F B G B CT ? G Q Q A F H H F G M D o k F d N D G O W k O F H F O S H B K ? O D E W Q A F H H F G M ? G Q E ? N d H F G M B C C B k A O B E F � E T ? H H B PR B A F G M E ? A B k G Q { � C D D O F G Q D d O T ? H B G M O T D E H B d D ` c D J F D P B C d A D J F B k E O B d B M A ? d T S ? G QE O B A N E D P D A K B G E O A k K O F B G d H ? G E P F H H ? F Q F G E H B d D E O ? R F H F O S ? G ? H S E F E B C O T D d ? E O ? G Qd A D E D G O E H B d D K B G Q F O F B G E `f ` � ? E D Q B G O T D A D E k H O E B C O T D M D B O D K T G F K ? H D J ? H k ? O F B G W O T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] B AU a \ I b Z ] L \ ] � E E k R K B G E k H O ? G O P F H H d A D d ? A D ? G D G M F G D D A F G M A D d B A O O T ? O Q D O ? F H E O T DA D E k H O E B C O T D O D E O F G M d D A C B A N D Q W d A B J F Q D E H B M E B C O T D R B A F G M E W ? G Q ? Q F ? M A ? N B C O T DE F O D � R B A F G M H ? S B k O ` ] T D A D d B A O P F H H F G K H k Q D O T D C B H H B P F G M q? ` � B A F G M H B M E P F O T C F D H Q ? G Q H ? R B A ? O B A S Q ? O ? lR ` I O A ? O F C F K ? O F B G R ? E D Q B G J F E k ? H E B F H K H ? E E F C F K ? O F B G lK ` � A B k G Q P ? O D A H D J D H E B R E D A J D Q Q k A F G M ? G Q ? C O D A O T D K B N d H D O F B G B C Q A F H H F G M lQ ` I F O D ? G Q R B A F G M H B K ? O F B G d H ? G E lD ` I k R E k A C ? K D D � d H B A ? O F B G d A B K D Q k A D E lC ` e D E K A F d O F B G B C E k R E k A C ? K D K B G Q F O F B G E lM ` [ � K ? J ? O F B G ? G Q Q D P ? O D A F G M K B G E F Q D A ? O F B G E lT ` I H B d D E O ? R F H F z ? O F B G A D K B N N D G Q ? O F B G E lF ` [ G M F G D D A F G M B d F G F B G B C d A B R ? R H D K B G E O A k K O F B G K B E O E C B A D ? K T O S d D B CA D K B N N D G Q D Q E O ? R F H F z ? O F B G N D O T B Qy ` L Q F M F O ? H v � w K B d S B C O T D M D B O D K T G F K ? H A D d B A O P F H H R D d A B J F Q D Q O B O T D U Z X [ \ ]k d B G A D o k D E O `� ` ] T D A D E k H O E B C O T D D G M F G D D A F G M A D d B A O E T ? H H R D A D J F D P D Q R S O T D U Z X [ \ ] ? G QU a \ I b Z ] L \ ] C B A E D H D K O F B G B C O T D d A D C D A A D Q E O ? R F H F z ? O F B G N D ? E k A D E ` X C G D K D E E ? A S WK B G K D d O E C B A E O ? R F H F z F G M O T D E H B d D E P F H H R D N B Q D H D Q ? G Q D J ? H k ? O D Q P F O T A D E d D K O O BC D ? E F R F H F O S ? G Q D C C D K O F J D G D E E `e ` ] T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] E T ? H H Q D J D H B d O T D d A D H F N F G ? A S Q D E F M G d H ? G E C B A O T D d A B y D K O H D O O F G M ` b d B GK B N d H D O F B G W O T D Q D E F M G d H ? G E E T B k H Q R D ? d d A B � F N ? O D H S { h � K B N d H D O D ? G Q F G K H k Q Dd A D H F N F G ? A S E F O D A D E O B A ? O F B G Q D E F M G ` ] T D Q D H F J D A ? R H D E C B A O T D d A D H F N F G ? A S Q D E F M G E T ? H H F G K H k Q D? G D H D K O A B G F K { h � d H ? G E D O ? G Q D G M F G D D A � E B d F G F B G B C d A B R ? R H S K B E O `i ` ] T D c F Q M D P B B Q e A F J D E H B d D E O ? R F H F z ? O F B G d A B y D K O K B G K D d O E N ? S F G K H k Q D N D ? E k A D EC B A Q D K A D ? E F G M O T D ? K O F J ? O F G M C B A K D E E k K T ? E E T D D O d F H F G M ? G Q Q A ? F G ? M D
268

ITEM 19.



F N d A B J D N D G O E B A N D ? E k A D E C B A F G K A D ? E F G M O T D A D E F E O F G M C B A K D E E k K T ? E O B D R D A N E WA B K � R k O O A D E E D E W A B K � � D S O A D G K T W R D G K T F G M W ? G Q E B F H A D d H ? K D N D G O `g ` ] T D | ? G Q ? H ? S e A F J D E H B d D E O ? R F H F z ? O F B G d A B y D K O K B G K D d O E N ? S F G K H k Q D N D ? E k A D E C B AQ D K A D ? E F G M O T D ? K O F J ? O F G M C B A K D E E k K T ? E Q A ? F G ? M D F N d A B J D N D G O E B A N D ? E k A D E C B AF G K A D ? E F G M O T D A D E F E O F G M C B A K D E E k K T ? E A B K � � D S O A D G K T D E W R D G K T F G M W ? G Q E B F HA D d H ? K D N D G O `f ` X O F E k G Q D A E O B B Q O T ? O O T F E d A B y D K O P F H H R D Q D J D H B d D Q C B A B G D R F Q H D O O F G M d ? K � ? M D `[ ` V B H H B P F G M O T D A D J F D P ? G Q M D G D A ? H ? d d A B J ? H B C O T D d A D H F N F G ? A S d H ? G E R S O T D U Z X [ \ ] W O T DU a \ I b Z ] L \ ] E T ? H H d A B K D D Q P F O T O T D Q D J D H B d N D G O B C V F G ? H @ H ? G E C B A O T D d A B y D K O ` ] T DU a \ I b Z ] L \ ] E T ? H H F G K B A d B A ? O D d A D H F N F G ? A S Q D E F M G A D J F D P K B N N D G O E W d A D d ? A D ? G Q E k R N F OO T D C B H H B P F G M C B A C F H F G M P F O T O T D U F O S K H D A � l d A F G O � A D ? Q S d A B y D K O N ? G k ? H W d A F G O � A D ? Q S d H ? G E D OK D A O F C F D Q R S ? H F K D G E D Q D G M F G D D A F G O T D E O ? O D B C X B P ? `V ` L Q Q F O F B G ? H H S W O T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] E T ? H H ? E E F E O O T D U Z X [ \ ] Q k A F G M O T D R F Q d D A F B Q F G ? G E P D A F G Mo k D E O F B G E A D M ? A Q F G M Q D E F M G F G O D G O ? G Q d A D d ? A D ? Q Q D G Q k N C B A Q F E O A F R k O F B G R S O T D U B G E k H O ? G O `V k A O T D A N B A D W ? A D K B N N D G Q ? O F B G O B ? P ? A Q E T ? H H R D d A B J F Q D Q `� ` L e e X ] X a \ L Z I [ c � X U [ Ii ` ] T D U Z X [ \ ] N ? S A D o k D E O L Q Q F O F B G ? H I D A J F K D E C A B N O T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] G B O F G K H k Q D QF G O T D I K B d D B C I D A J F K D E ? E B k O H F G D Q ` L Q Q F O F B G ? H I D A J F K D E N ? S F G K H k Q D W R k O ? A D G B OG D K D E E ? A F H S H F N F O D Q O B W ? Q Q F O F B G ? H M D B O D K T G F K ? H E D A J F K D E W @ T ? E D X L A K T ? D B H B M F K ? H ? G QU k H O k A ? H c D E B k A K D E I k A J D S W S ? A Q � H ? P G � d ? J D N D G O A D E O B A ? O F B G C B H H B P F G M M D B O D K T G F K ? HC F D H Q P B A � W A D d ? F A � A D d H ? K D N D G O B C k O F H F O F D E O T ? O ? A D F G K B A A D K O H S N ? A � D Q B A G B O N ? Q D� G B P G O B O T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] d A F B A O B C F D H Q P B A � W ? O O D G Q F G M d k R H F K N D D O F G M E Wd D A N ? G D G O ? K o k F E F O F B G D � T F R F O E Y D ` M ` d D A N ? G D G O D ? E D N D G O E ^ W ? K o k F E F O F B G E D A J F K D E Wd A B J F Q F G M O D E O F G M E D A J F K D E W K B G E O A k K O F B G E D A J F K D E l D � d ? G Q F G M O T D E K B d D B C O T D d A B y D K OB A O T D P B A � O B R D K B N d H D O D Q l A D o k D E O F G M O T D Q D J D H B d N D G O B C J ? A F B k E Q B K k N D G O E lD � O D G Q F G M O T D O F N D O B K B N d H D O D ? d A B y D K O O T A B k M T G B C ? k H O B C O T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] l B AA D o k D E O F G M ? Q Q F O F B G ? H P B A � F O D N E O T ? O F G K A D ? E D O T D [ G M F G D D A F G M I D A J F K D E ? G QK B A A D E d B G Q F G M K B E O E `n ` ] T D E K T D Q k H D C B A d A B J F Q F G M O T D E D E D A J F K D E F E ? E C B H H B P E qi ` � D B O D K T G F K ? H V F D H Q m B A � q \ B J D N R D A g { W g h i pg ` ] B d B M A ? d T F K I k A J D S q e D K D N R D A g W g h i pf ` � D B O D K T G F K ? H c D d B A O I k R N F E E F B G q e D K D N R D A i } W g h i p� ` c D J F D P | D D O F G M m F O T U Z X [ \ ] q � ? G k ? A S } W g h g h{ ` @ A D H F N F G ? A S e D E F M G I k R N F O O ? H O B U Z X [ \ ] q � ? G k ? A S g ~ W g h g h} ` @ A D H F N F G ? A S e D E F M G c D J F D P U B N N D G O E | D D O F G M q V D R A k ? A S i h W g h g h~ ` V F G ? H U B G O A ? K O e B K k N D G O E I k R N F O O ? H O B O T D U Z X [ \ ] q | ? A K T p W g h g hr r s t u � v : � = < � r u �U B N d D G E ? O F B G C B A O T D I D A J F K D E E T ? H H R D B G ? G T B k A H S R ? E F E F G ? K K B A Q ? G K D P F O T O T D T B k A H SC D D E ? G Q B O T D A Q F A D K O D � d D G E D E F G D C C D K O ? O O T D O F N D O T D E D A J F K D E ? A D d D A C B A N D Q ` ] B O ? HK B N d D G E ? O F B G F E ? G B O O B D � K D D Q C D D B C � { h W h h h ` ] T D K B N d D G E ? O F B G C B A O T F E E k d d H D N D G O ? H? M A D D N D G O F E O B R D E D M A D M ? O D Q C A B N O T D B A F M F G ? H ? M A D D N D G O `
269

ITEM 19.



r r r s < = = r � � < � r � r � �i ` ] T D U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] E T ? H H G B O ? E E F M G ? G S F G O D A D E O F G O T F E L � c [ [ | [ \ ] ? G Q E T ? H H G B OO A ? G E C D A ? G S F G O D A D E O F G O T D E ? N D P F O T B k O O T D d A F B A P A F O O D G K B G E D G O B C O T D U Z X [ \ ] `I k R K B G E k H O ? G O E Q D E F M G ? O D Q ? E d ? A O B C O T F E L � c [ [ | [ \ ] E T ? H H R D Q D D N D Q O B R D? d d A B J D Q P T D G O T F E L � c [ [ | [ \ ] F E D � D K k O D Q `g ` I k R K B G E k H O ? G O E ? A D d A B d B E D Q ? E C B H H B P E qL H H D G Q D A � k O z � D [ G M F G D D A E W X G K `r x s X G ? H H B O T D A ? E d D K O E W O T D B R H F M ? O F B G E B C O T D U Z X [ \ ] ? G Q U a \ I b Z ] L \ ] E T ? H H A D N ? F G ? EE d D K F C F D Q F G O T D @ A B C D E E F B G ? H I D A J F K D E L M A D D N D G O Q ? O D Q e D K D N R D A f W g h i j `r � 8 r � � : = = 8 9 : ; : u w W O T D d ? A O F D E T D A D O B T ? J D D � D K k O D Q O T F E ? M A D D N D G O B G O T D Q ? S ? G Q S D ? AP A F O O D G R D H B P `< v v ; u x : � w u ; t � r : � � < v v ; u x : � w u ; t u � = � � � < � � s� S q � S q@ A F G O D Q \ ? N D q @ A F G O D Q \ ? N D q Z F G Q E ? S � D ? N ? G] F O H D q ] F O H D q � k E F G D E E b G F O Z D ? Q D Ae ? O D q e ? O D q � � � � � \ B J D N R D A g p W g h i p � � � � � � � � � � � �

270

ITEM 19.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: October 30, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Encroachment Agreement for North Cedar Neighborhood Association 
 
Several years ago, City Council approved the use of a general Encroachment Agreement that 
can be entered into between the City and a property owner requesting to utilize City right-of-way 
for certain minor, unobtrusive improvements in the right-of-way that would provide an 
enhancement. Prior to the use of our Encroachment Agreement, there was not a mechanism in 
place to accommodate these minimal and reasonable requests. 
 
The North Cedar Neighborhood 
Association has been working with 
staff for the past several months on a 
request to install a second 
approximate 6 foot wide by 3 foot tall 
limestone rock with the neighborhood 
association name engraved on it 
within the City’s right-of-way. The 
proposed location of the 
neighborhood sign would be along 
the north side of Lone Tree Road approximately 0.3 miles west of Big Woods Road. This 
particular location for the sign was chosen by the neighborhood association, as they consider it 
to be a gateway into northern Cedar Falls from Highway 218. 
 
As you can see in Exhibit “A” attached to the encroachment agreement, the sign will be placed 
approximately 10 feet away from the pavement of Lone Tree Road. Staff and the 
representatives from the neighborhood association visited the site to determine the best location 
for the sign, and the location that was chosen was done so because it would not appear to 
cause any visual impairment to either vehicular or pedestrian traffic. Staff also consulted with 
Public Works and the Engineering Department to review the location of the sign and received no 
concerns. Additionally as outlined in the Encroachment Agreement, if the City or CFU ever 
needs to undertake construction in this right of way area, the North Cedar Neighborhood 
Association would be responsible for the removal or relocation of the sign. 
 
The encroachment agreement was drafted by City Attorney Kevin Rogers and was reviewed by 
the neighborhood association. Staff recommends approving the attached Encroachment 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and the North Cedar Neighborhood Association. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact the Community Development 
Department. 

 

271

ITEM 20.



272

ITEM 20.



273

ITEM 20.



274

ITEM 20.



275

ITEM 20.



276

ITEM 20.



277

ITEM 20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: October 30, 2019  

 SUBJECT: First Amendment to Conditional Zoning Agreement at the southwest corner of Highway 
58 and West Ridgeway Avenue 

 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Approve the First Amendment to the Conditional Zoning Agreement for 
Relocation of Pylon Sign at the southwest corner of Highway 58 and W. 
Ridgeway Avenue 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Midland Atlantic Development Company, LLC, Developer; Mills Properties LLC, 
Tenant; VEREIT Real Estate L.P., property owner 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue 

 
The applicant has submitted a request to amend the conditional zoning agreement on 49.52 acres of 
land in regards to the Mills Fleet Farm development at the southwest corner of Highway 58 and W. 
Ridgeway Avenue. Said agreement was approved by the City Council in conjunction with the 
rezoning of the property on November 5, 2018. 
 
The petitioner has requested an amendment to their site plan by relocating the Fleet Farm pylon 
sign. The current location of said pylon sign is near the southeast corner of the building, which is 
approximately 12 feet below the adjacent grade of the property and it will not be visible to Highway 
20. The proposed location of the pylon sign will be placed at the top of the bank with better visibility 
to the adjacent highway. The proposed location lies within the Highway 58 corridor preservation 
zone established by the Iowa Department of Transportation. This preservation zone is an area that 
may be used for future highway purposes in the event that Highway 58 and 20 were reconstructed 
with a controlled access. The Iowa DOT does not object to the proposed location of the pylon sign 
with the understanding that if the sign were to be relocated for the reconstruction of Highway 58/20, 
the owner will be required to move the sign.  
 
Therefore, an amendment to the original zoning agreement will be brought before the City Council 
for consideration. The Planning and Zoning Commission will discuss this matter at their regularly 
scheduled meeting on November 6, 2019. 
 
Staff requests that Council set a public hearing date for November 18, 2019 to formally consider the 
first amendment to the conditional zoning agreement. A full staff report will be provided to City 
Council prior the public hearing. 278

ITEM 21.



 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT TO CONDITIONAL ZONING AGREEMENT FOR PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF HIGHWAY 58 AND W. 

RIDGEWAY AVENUE, AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC 

HEARING 

 

 WHEREAS, the property generally located at the southwest corner of Highway 58 and 

W. Ridgeway Avenue was rezoned to HWY-1 and is subject to a Conditional Zoning Agreement 

that was approved by the Cedar Falls City Council on November 5, 2018, and 

 

 WHEREAS, a commercial development plan was approved by the City Council on 

December 3, 2018 on said property, and 

 

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to amend the approved site plan for said property, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the amended site plan includes a new location for a pylon sign that requires 

an amendment to the Conditional Zoning Agreement, and  

 

WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of the amended site plan and 

Conditional Zoning Agreement, and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 

a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposal to amend the 

Conditional Zoning Agreement for the following described real estate: 

 

All that part of the East ½ of the Northwest Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly of 

Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and 571 LD 973, except those parts conveyed for 

public highway in 113 LD 199 and 539 LD 85, and also except that part thereof conveyed to 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, in Doc. No. 2011-00009788; 

 

AND 

 

All that part of the West ½ of the Northeast Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly and 

Westerly of Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and lying Westerly and Southerly of 

the public highway described in 569 LD 205 and 539 LD 85. 

 

279

ITEM 21.



And that said public hearing shall be held on the 18th day of November, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock 

P.M., in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  The City Clerk 

is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 

 

 

 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of November, 2019. 

 

 

  _________________________ 

                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

280

ITEM 21.



 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO 

CONDITIONAL ZONING AGREEMENT FOR PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF HIGHWAY 58 AND 

W. RIDGEWAY AVENUE 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended to the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, an amendment to the Conditional Zoning 

Agreement for property described as follows: 
 

All that part of the East ½ of the Northwest Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly of 

Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and 571 LD 973, except those parts conveyed for 

public highway in 113 LD 199 and 539 LD 85, and also except that part thereof conveyed to 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, in Doc. No. 2011-00009788. 
 

AND 
 

All that part of the West ½ of the Northeast Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly and 

Westerly of Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and lying Westerly and Southerly of 

the public highway described in 569 LD 205 and 539 LD 85. 
 

There will be a public hearing on the 18th day of November, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., in the 

Council Chambers. Said Conditional Zoning Agreement is now on file in the office of the City 

Clerk in the City Hall in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and is available for reference and 

inspection by the public. Objections to said amendment to the Conditional Zoning Agreement 

may be made in writing at any time prior to the public hearing as set forth herein and oral 

objections will be heard at said hearing. 

 

_________________________________ 

                 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

281

ITEM 21.


	Top
	1. Regular meeting of October 21, 2019
	191021MINUTES

	2. PH - Big Woods Campground Lease Agreement
	Lease Memo
	Big Woods Lake House Lease

	3. Res for PH - Big Wood Campground Lease Agreement
	4. PH-Plans-Sanitary Sewer Rehab
	PH Memo-2019 SS
	Updated CDBG Lining Map 8-15-2019
	2019 Sanitary Sewer Lining Specs

	5. Res-Plans-2019 Sanitary Sewer Project
	6. PH - CDBG FY18 CAPER
	1. Memo to Council -  PH for CAPER 18
	Cedar Falls CAPER FFY 2018 (Public Review Draft 10-30-19)

	7. Res-CAPER
	8. Ord. 2957-Speed Limit Ridgeway
	2957-Speed Limit-Ridgeway

	9. Ord. 2958-PPTE Broadstone
	2958-PPTE Broadstone

	10. Committee of the Whole Minutes 10/21/19
	Comm of the Whole 10 21 19

	11. Monthly Report - September 2019
	Monthly Report - September 2019

	12. Liquor Licenses - 11/04/19
	Liquor Beer 11-04-19

	13. FY20 ICRC COOP Agreement
	FY20 ICRC COOP - Council Pkt

	14. Assessment-2208 Coventry Ln-Mowing
	Memo-Assessment
	Supporting Docs for CC

	15. Assessment-1804 Tremont St-Mowing
	cc memo &amp; supporting docs-1804 Tremont Assessment-11.04.19

	16. Lobbyist Contract-Cope Murphy
	1-council lobbyist2019.mem
	Lobbyist Contract

	17. EV Charger and parking space
	1-council EV charger.mem
	2-EVCharger

	18. 28E Agreement for Tobacco, Alternative Nicotine and Vapor Product Enforcement
	Tobacco Grant Council Request 2019
	2019 Tobacco Grant

	19. Supp Agrmt #12 with Snyder for Slope Stabilization
	1. Memo_daw-revised
	2.PSA_SuppAgr12_SlopeStabilization_2019-11-04 (3)-CutePDF

	20. Encroachment agreement-NCNA
	1_Council Memo for 2nd NCNA Encroachment Agr 10-30-19

	21. Set PH-First Amendment to Conditional Zoning Agreement for property generally located at the southwest corner of highway 58 and W. Ridgeway Avenue
	1. Council Staff Memo Setting Public Hearing - 1st amendment to conditional zoning agreement 10-30-19
	2. CC Resolution Setting Public Hearing - First Amendment to Conditional Zoning Agreement 10-30-19
	3. CC Notice

	22. Allow Bills and Payroll of November 4, 2019
	Bottom

